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In this Annual Report on Form 10-K the Report unless otherwise expressly stated or the context

otherwise requires IPC we us and our refer to IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc Delaware

corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries together with IPC affiliated professional corporations and

limited liability companies affiliated professional organizations Our affiliated professional organizations

are separate legal entities that provide physician services in certain states and with which we have management

agreements For financial reporting purposes we consolidate the revenues and expenses of all our practice

groups that we own or manage because we have controlling financial interest in these practices based on

applicable accounting rules and as described in our accompanying financial statements Also unless otherwise

expressly stated or the context otherwise requires our affiliated hospitalists refer to physicians nurse

practitioners and physician assistants employed or contracted by either our wholly-owned subsidiaries or our

affiliated professional organizations References to practices or practice groups refer to our affiliated

professional organizations and the wholly-owned subsidiaries of IPC that provide medical services unless

otherwise expressly stated or the context otherwise requires

Forward-Looking Statements

This Report including Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations in Item contains forwa rd-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 regarding future events and the future results of IPC that are based on

managements current expectations estimates projections and assumptions about the Companys business

Words such as may will could should target potential project expects anticipates

intends plans believes sees estimates and variations of such words and similar expressions are

intended to identify such forward-looking statements These statements are not guarantees offuture performance

and involve risks uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict Therefore actual outcomes and

results may differ mate rially from what is expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking statements due to

numerous factors including but not limited to those discussed in the Risk Factors in Item JA

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item and

elsewhere in this Report as well as those discussed from time to time in the Company other Securities and

Exchange Commission filings and reports In addition such statements could be affected by general industry and

market conditions Such forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Report or in the case of any

document incorporated by reference the date of that document and we do not undertake any obligation to

update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Report or for

changes made to this document by wire services or Internet service providers If we update or correct one or

more forward-looking statements investors and others should not conclude that we will make additional updates

or corrections with respect to other forward-looking statements

PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Company Overview

We are leading provider of hospitalist services in the United States Hospitalist medicine is organized

around inpatient care primarily delivered in hospitals and is focused on providing managing and coordinating

the care of hospitalized patients We believe we are the largest dedicated hospitalist company in the United States

based on revenues patient encounters and number of affiliated hospitalists As of December 31 2008 our 659

affiliated hospitalists including physicians nurse practitioners and physician assistants provide hospitalist

solutions at over 445 hospitals and other inpatient facilities in eighteen states We have had more than 6.6 million

patient encounters since the beginning of 2006 Collectively our affiliated hospitalists work with more than

29000 referring physicians and 2900 health plans Our early entry into the emerging hospitalist industry has

permitted us to establish reputation and leadership position that we believe is closely identified with hospitalist

medicine



We began operating our first physician practice in 1998 and have increased the number of our practice

groups to over 170 as of December 31 2008 Since the beginning of 2006 we have acquired twenty-four practice

groups and successfully integrated them into IPC and onto IPC-Link our proprietary technology-based

management system Our affiliated hospitalists are primarily full-time employees of our wholly-owned
subsidiaries or our affiliated professional organizations although we also have contracts with over 440 other

physicians and non-physician providers who provide episodic care on weekends or evenings as needed

Our Company assists hospitals and payors in improving quality of care increasing operating efficiencies and

reducing costs Our Company through our affiliated hospitalists provides manages and coordinates the care of

hospitalized patients and serves as the inpatient partner of primary care physicians and specialists allowing them to

focus their time and resources on their office based practices or their specialties We also provide our affiliated

hospitalists with the infrastructure information management systems specialized training programs and administrative

support necessary to perform these services We believe we are an attractive employer to hospitalists whether

practicing as individuals or in groups because our administrative services help reduce the burden associated with

managing physician practice Likewise we believe hospitalists choose to affiliate with us because of our leadership

position financial resources technology-based infrastructure commitment to training and development and our

performance-based compensation We provide comprehensive solution of clinical and management experience

proprietary technology and high quality of care to healthcare constituents which we believe provides us with

sustained competitive advantage to capitalize on the rapid growth in demand for hospitalists

Industry Overview

Hospitalist medicine is an emerging specialty Hospitalists focus on patients care from the time of

admission to discharge working in close consultation with primary care physicians other referring physicians

and medical providers to coordinate the inpatient care delivery system and manage the entire inpatient episode of

care Hospitalists receive medical training generally in primary care with many having experience in internal

medicine family practice or other medical specialties Hospitalists differ from primary care physicians and

specialists by treating patients only in non-office based setting By focusing exclusively on inpatient medicine

hospitalist develops practice expertise in both the diagnosis and treatment of common conditions that require

hospitalization and the optimization of patient care within hospital We believe hospitalists serve necessary
and critical role in coordinating managing and communicating with the different healthcare constituents within

the inpatient care and post-hospital settings According to 2002 study in the Journal of the American Medical

Association hospitalist programs have resulted in an average 13.4% reduction in hospital costs and an average
16.6% reduction in the average length of patients hospital stay

Hospitalists practice in inpatient facilities including acute care hospitals long-term acute care facilities

specialty hospitals psychiatric facilities rehabilitation hospitals and skilled nursing facilities Acute care

hospitals represent the largest component of inpatient facilities in which hospitalists practice with currently over

4900 hospitals in the United States based on 2005 survey by the American Hospital Association or AHA
According to the AHA in 2006 there were approximately 35 million admissions to inpatient facilities in the

United States and the average length of stay was approximately 5.6 days ifl 2006 total U.S spending on

hospital care was $648 billion and is expected to grow at compound annual growth rate of approximately 7.0%

to $1346 billion in 2016 according to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services

Hospitalists assume the inpatient care responsibilities that are otherwise provided by the primary care

physician or attending physician and are reimbursed by third parties using the same visit-based or procedural

billing codes as would be used by the primary care physician or attending physician By practicing each day in

the same facility hospitalists perform consistent functions interact regularly with the same healthcare

professionals and become highly accustomed to specific facility processes which can result in greater efficiency

less process variability and better patient outcomes We believe hospitalists are better able to achieve these

results because of their exclusive focus on inpatient care without the inherent distraction of balancing both

inpatient and outpatient care responsibilities Likewise we believe hospitalists generate operating and cost

efficiencies by managing the treatment of large number of patients with similar clinical needs



According to the Society of Hospitalist Medicine or SHM the number of hospitalists has grown from an

estimated 800 in the mid- 1990s to approximately 23000 in 2007 making it one of the fastest-growing medical

disciplines in the United States study by The American Hospital Association released in 2008 indicates that

over 50% of all hospitals have formal hospitalist programs and we believe based on our operational experience

that greater number of hospitals have hospitalists practicing within their facilities In 2008 SHM estimated that

the number of hospitalists will reach approximately 30000 by 2010

We believe the growing demand for hospitalists is primarily driven by five significant changes in the

healthcare delivery system

The primary care physicians role in hospital care is decreasing due to the increasingly specialized

nature of hospital care the demands of treating higher acuity patients in an outpatient setting and the

desire to reduce on-call obligations

Hospitals have greater need for consistent on-site physician availability due to the need to admit

patients from the emergency room the increasing severity of illness required to justify hospital

admissions and external pressures to decrease the length of inpatient stays

Specialists have an increased desire to limit their practice to their medical specialty

National residency accreditation organizations have established limitations on the number of hours that

resident physicians in training may practice and

Health plans are seeking alternative mechanisms to appropriately control the substantial increase in

inpatient expenditures

Our Company and Our Solution

We seek to provide high-quality professional medical care for patients while reducing the cost of care for

inpatient facilities and payors Either through our wholly-owned subsidiaries or our affiliated professional

organizations as of December 31 2008 we employ or currently affiliate with 659 hospitalists including

physicians nurse practitioners and physician assistants who are organized into traditional medical group

practices to provide hospitalist services To enhance the efficiency of these operations we offer our affiliated

hospitalists specialized training programs information management systems and the administrative support

necessary to effectively manage these nationally integrated practice group organizations We have entered into

long-term management contracts with our affiliated professional organizations in those states where business

entities as opposed to physicians are prohibited by statute from practicing medicine and include these entities in

our consolidated financial statements

We generate approximately 95% of our net revenues through our affiliated hospitalists patient encounters at

hospitals and other inpatient facilities including acute sub-acute and long-term care settings Patients are referred

to our affiliated hospitalists through their community medical providers emergency departments payors and

hospitals in the same manner as many other medical professionals receive referrals Third party payors and

patients pay for our services in the same manner as they would pay the primary care physicians and other

medical professionals who otherwise would be furnishing this direct patient care The remainder of our revenues

are substantially comprised of contracts with hospitals and other inpatient facilities to provide hospitalist

services

We believe each major constituent of the healthcare delivery system including patients primary care

physicians specialists acute care hospitals alternative sites of inpatient care and health plans can benefit from

better coordinated inpatient care We are positioned to assist each of these constituents in finding solutions to

many of the challenges associated with patient care at inpatient facilities



Patients

Patients frequently experience medical conditions at unpredictable times and may require admission to

hospital when their primary care physician is unavailable or patients may not have primary care physician The

quality or the perception of the care received by the patient may suffer as result of the limited availability of

dedicated physicians in the inpatient setting to answer patient questions and provide continuity throughout the

inpatient experience Uncoordinated communication between healthcare providers patients and family members
often negatively affects the inpatient experience and may also impact patient outcomes

In addition to providing medical services our affiliated hospitalists are trained to serve as team leaders in

coordinating inpatient care and providing consistent single point of contact for patients family members and
medical professionals Our affiliated hospitalists facilitate the communication of patient information in the

inpatient setting and after the patient is discharged often assist with the transition to outpatient or other post-
hospital care by communicating with the outpatient physician provider In the event patient does not have

primary care physician our hospitalists refer the patient to physicians or clinics in the area

Primary Care Physicians

Primary care physicians are typically focused on treating patients in an office-based setting not an inpatient

facility The time spent making hospital rounds may reduce the time available for primary care physicians to treat

patients in their offices which can result in lower earnings for the physician In addition an inpatients medical

needs may be unpredictable and require the primary care physician to provide off-hour attention and unscheduled

care Even within the confines of the provision of office-based services the burden on primary care physicians is

increasing because of the continuing reduction in the average length of inpatient stays and the corresponding
increase in the acuity of patients treated in an outpatient setting

We train and
support our affiliated hospitalists to manage the care of hospitalized patients enabling them to

assume the inpatient care responsibilities that were previously provided by the primary care physician As
result of our services primary care physicians have the opportunity to spend more time treating office-based

patients which may increase their earnings Our hospitalist programs result in reduced on-call time for primary
care physicians and relieve practice demands during evenings and weekends Our affiliated hospitalists also

coordinate the discharge and transition of inpatients to outpatient care by communicating with patients primary
care physicians after discharge from an inpatient facility We believe that this communication also enhances

patients continuity of care

Specialists

Specialist physicians are trained to focus on specific procedures or medical conditions As result

specialists often desire to limit their practice to their medical specialty Hospitalized patients however

frequently experience multiple medical conditions that require consideration and coordination among several

specialists and other care providers For example an orthopedic surgeon treating an elderly patient must consider

the patients other medical conditions such as diabetes or hypertension which can be treated by our affiliated

hospitalists or other healthcare providers

Our affiliated hospitalists focus on the needs of hospitalized patients thereby relieving specialists of

primary responsibility for certain unrelated clinical issues in the inpatient setting and providing these specialists

with an opportunity to focus on their specialty We believe that this enhances the productivity of specialists Our
affiliated hospitalists also serve as liaison between specialists and patients primary care physicians other care

providers and family members

Acute Care Hospitals

Acute care hospitals must provide consistent and reliable care despite potentially having hundreds of

admitting physicians who each have their own methods of care preferences for medications and differing

utilization and review
processes The resulting process variability can lead to an increased number of clinical



errors higher medical costs and deficiencies in medical record documentation which can lead to reimbursement

and regulatory issues Additionally acute care hospitals may experience difficulty finding available physicians

because of the reluctance of some medical staff members to assume the care of unassigned patients This is

further complicated by the statutory and organizational limitations on intern and resident duty hours Acute care

hospitals also face the challenge of providing medical care to indigent patients Finally acute care hospitals can

often face emergency department overcrowding caused by large numbers of unassigned patients seeking

admission to the hospital through the emergency department

Our hospitalist programs are structured to provide acute care hospitals with consistent on-site physician

presence that typically results in fewer admitting physicians overseeing patients in the hospital thereby reducing

process variability and enhancing the ability to implement standardized practices We believe our affiliated

hospitalists consistent presence in the facilities leads to more efficient processes within the acute care hospitals

which can improve clinical outcomes decrease average length of inpatient stay and lower costs per day By

concentrating the care of more patients with relatively fewer physicians hospitals can more easily implement

new initiatives and enhance compliance with protocols We believe our hospitalist training programs lead to

improved medical record documentation which can improve hospital reimbursement and result in better

regulatory compliance Overall through our hospitalist programs we provide acute care hospitals with increased

patient coverage rapid response times efficient management of care for insured and indigent patients and

increased emergency department throughput

Alternative Sites of Inpatient Care

Alternative sites of inpatient care such as long-term acute care facilities specialty hospitals psychiatric

facilities rehabilitation hospitals and skilled nursing facilities face many of the same challenges as acute care

hospitals Alternative sites of inpatient care may face additional challenges related to the narrow breadth of

physician coverage
that is typically available at such sites

Our affiliated hospitalists provide alternative sites of inpatient care with consistent on-site physician

availability and experience which we believe benefits the alternative site of inpatient care facility by providing

single point of contact and enhances regular communication with other healthcare constituents outside the site of

care By coordinating inpatient care at such facilities we believe our affiliated hospitalists manage the

appropriate utilization of patient care to the benefit of both the facility and the patient

Health Plans

Health plans face significant increases in costs caused by inconsistent healthcare practices redundant

diagnostic tests inefficient discharge coordination between hospitals and outpatient physician providers and

process variability In addition health plans can incur additional costs when their members are admitted to

hospitals by physicians who are not credentialed by their plan

Health plans contract with our credentialed affiliated hospitalists to provide in-network coverage
for

hospitalized members We believe our affiliated hospitalists provide consistent healthcare practices coordinate

ordering of diagnostic tests with outpatient physician providers and reduce process variability resulting in

reduced medical costs for health plans while promoting quality of care

Our Services

We provide our affiliated hospitalists with administrative and professional services to support
their practice

of medicine reduce their administrative burden and improve their operating efficiencies

Information Management System We provide our affiliated hospitalists with access to IPCLink through

our web-based Virtual Office portal to support their clinical administrative and communications needs

IPCLink is distinctive in its ability to capture the results of each doctor-patient encounter and organize these



results into searchable database IPCLink enables our affiliated hospitalists to view and record important

patient data and allows hospitalists in practice group to share patient information as needed Additionally the

technology enables our affiliated hospitalists to communicate directly and securely to our clinical call center risk

management and compliance departments IPCLink operates via secure HIPAA-compliant web interface

which allows us to assume responsibility for billing collection and reimbursement for services rendered by our

affiliated hospitalists

Transition Management We use IPCLink to create customized
surveys for patients who are discharged to

home from an inpatient facility To assist in monitoring and documenting the patients discharge or transition to

outpatient care IPCLink provides our call center with patient information and follow-up instructions Our

dedicated call center staff of patient representatives and nurses contacts the discharged patient usually within 48

hours of discharge to home to discuss the patients ability to understand post-discharge instructions obtain

prescribed medication schedule an appointment with primary care physician and fulfill other health-related

post-discharge needs Our system enables us to identify patients post-discharge medical issues on near real

time basis coordinate care with the appropriate care provider improve outcomes lower the re-admission rate

into inpatient facilities and decrease our medical malpractice risk

Regional Management Each of our operating regions is led by an experienced executive director and team

of marketing and administrative staff that is responsible for the overall non-clinical management of our affiliated

practice groups within region as well as coordinating hospitalist recruitment monitoring financial performance

and contracting with facilities and payors Our regional executive directors and their staffs provide our affiliated

hospitalists with direct day-to-day access to an experienced management team that is familiar with the

opportunities and challenges faced by hospitalists in particular region

Recruiting As national company we have greater resources to commit to recruiting hospitalists than do

small practice groups We have dedicated staff of recruiting professionals who are regionally assigned to

source screen and provide candidates to each of our local markets Our recruiting strategy includes advertising in

national physician publications and websites exhibiting at professional association meetings establishing

regular presence at select residency programs and leveraging our existing hospitalist relationships

Training We have developed extensive training programs and tools for our newly hired hospitalists and our

tenured affiliated hospitalists Our newly hired hospitalists are required to enroll in our comprehensive new-hire

training program prior to treating patients The new-hire training program emphasizes the role of the hospitalist

in leading the clinical care team and provides training on billing and medical record documentation compliance
risk management and other related topics regarding hospitalist practices Newly hired hospitalists are also paired

with experienced local hospitalists as part of the new hire training program We provide continuing medical

education programs for our existing affiliated hospitalists that are designed to enhance the skills of our affiliated

hospitalists in key areas including clinical risk management and compliance We
sponsor local and national

retreats for our affiliated hospitalists to foster better communication and learning and enhance their professional

practices Additionally we use the automated reporting capabilities of IPCLink to allow our affiliated

hospitalists to compare and benchmark performance metrics This information provides positive feedback to our

affiliated hospitalists when
strong performance is achieved and helps to identify specific areas for improvement

Financial Reporting Each month we provide our practice groups with detailed financial statement that

enables each of our affiliated hospitalists to see the financial performance of their respective practices Our

incentive compensation plan is based on these financial statements and provides transparency regarding bonus

compensation to our affiliated hospitalists

Billing and Collections We assume responsibility for all billing reimbursement and collection
processes

relating to hospitalist services provided by our affiliated hospitalists and practice groups To address the

increasingly complex and time-consuming process for obtaining reimbursement for medical services we have

invested in both the technical and human resources necessary to create an efficient billing and reimbursement



process We provide extensive training to our affiliated hospitalists that emphasizes detailed documentation and

proper coding protocol for services provided and procedures performed

Risk Management We provide risk management and quality management programs to our affiliated

hospitalists We take proactive role in promoting early reporting evaluation and resolution of incidents that

may evolve into medical claims Our risk management program includes hospitalist education and sophisticated

claims management program The collection and analysis of claims data enables us to identify loss patterns and

trends to better target risk management intervention and proactively address potential liability Risk management

education is included in our core orientation program for newly hired hospitalists and advanced risk

management topics are offered to our tenured affiliated hospitalists

Compliance Compliance programs are an important part of our business that permit us and our affiliated

hospitalists to respond to new regulations and legislation as they arise We have invested significant resources in

developing and enhancing our compliance program including proprietary compliance issue tracking databases

routine checks of the U.S Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Inspector General or the

OIG list of Excluded Persons or Entities automated monitoring of key claims management processes and

facility contract analysis and monitoring We also provide comprehensive monitoring and internal auditing

processes by both internal staff and third-party coding specialists Compliance education is an important

component of our new-hire training program for our entire staff

Our Operating Structure

We are national hospitalist group practice consisting of over 170 local practice groups operating in

fourteen different regions as of December 31 2008 The practice groups
within each region generally consist of

all of our affiliated hospitalists that practice at specific inpatient facility These practice groups are supported

by both dedicated local professional management teams and clinical leadership

Operational Management Teams Our fourteen regions are each organized around regional executive

director and small staff of marketing/practice management and administrative personnel These management

teams are responsible for strategic planning coordinating with our national staff to recruit hospitalists managing

hospital and payor relationships and contracts monitoring financial performance marketing to new referral

sources credentialing with hospitals and payors identifying new facilities in markets where we may expand our

presence and managing the day-to-day non-clinical practice activities

Clinical Leadership Each practice group has practice group leader who is involved in the management of

the practice group including staffing and scheduling monitoring quality of care and financial performance and

new business initiatives Each practice group leader is practicing hospitalist and is part of regional council

that advises the regions executive director contributes to clinical leadership for the region and engages in the

planning process for the region Each regional council appoints representative to serve on our national advisory

board which advises our chief medical officer We also support the regional and local clinical leadership

structure with our corporate medical affairs department which monitors company-wide clinical performance and

benchmarks develops programs and coordinates our clinical research activities

Development and Acquisition Program

We have dedicated development and acquisition team whose role is to execute our growth strategy by

identifying and capitalizing on complementary facility contract and acquisition opportunities in new markets In

existing markets our development and acquisition team assists the executive director for the region with growth

opportunities by identifying and capitalizing on acquisitions of other local practice groups or contracting with

new facilities within the region or obtaining contracts with facilities where our affiliated hospitalists are already

practicing In new markets our development and acquisition team identifies acquisition and contract

opportunities and coordinates the due diligence negotiation and execution of these acquisitions and hospital

contracts



Technology-Based Management System

IPCLink is fully-integrated technology-based management system that supports the clinical

administrative and communication needs of our affiliated hospitalists Our system contains proprietary software

sophisticated databases and rules engines automated billing interfaces and extensive web-based reporting tools

We began developing the system internally more than ten years ago and have designed this system to

accommodate significant future growth in our business

Our affiliated hospitalists access IPCLink through our web-based Virtual Office portal which can be

accessed through web browser running on any internet connected computer This portal into the system

provides our dispersed workforce with extensive resources and information content and serves as centralized

contact point for our affiliated hospitalists The Virtual Office provides regional and company-wide news
clinical reference materials an on-line library practice schedules access to clinical and business reports related

to the practice groups web-based continuing medical education patient feedback access to employee benefits

plan information and secure e-mail system with all of our employees Our affiliated hospitalists must utilize

this portal to access their clinical information and bill for their services

Our affiliated hospitalists use IPCLink to record each patient encounter and are personally responsible for

entering data into the system to reduce chances for error or misinterpretation by nurse or assistant Our system
audits the billing information entered by our affiliated hospitalists for completeness and accuracy and creates an
electronic billing file for automated submission to payors IPCLink is distinctive in its ability to capture the

results of each clinician-patient encounter and organize these results into searchable database

IPCLink technology enables our affiliated hospitalists to communicate directly and securely with referring

physicians and other healthcare constituents in addition to our clinical call center risk management and

compliance departments For example based on information entered directly by the hospitalist our system

produces concise admission progress and discharge notes and faxes this information to referring physicians and

other healthcare constituents Our faxed discharge notes contain key patient information for use following

discharge such as diagnoses medical tests and studies performed consultants used medications prescribed
home care ordered and follow-up care recommendations IPCLink also alerts our call center when patient has

been discharged from the hospital to home and generates tailored post-discharge survey that we administer to

that patient by phone IPCLink compiles call center findings and interventions and faxes summary to the

patients outpatient physician

We also use IPCLink to monitor our financial and clinical performance We create customized web-based

reports based on near real-time data to track important operating metrics including length of stay patient
volumes and physician productivity referral sources and trends readmission rates physician billings clinical

quality indicators patient satisfaction and patient post-discharge survey results

In addition to our intellectual
property rights related to IPCLink we also own certain copyrights

trademarks and trade secrets

Contracts with Inpatient Facilities

Our affiliated hospitalists in general provide services in any inpatient facility where they have credentials
called privileges regardless of whether we have entered into contract with the inpatient facility When we
contract with hospitals and other inpatient facilities we typically provide various professional services including

supporting the emergency department assisting in bed allocation planning patient discharge coordinating with

ancillary departments cooperating with facility management developing facility policies and procedures

training facility personnel and developing call schedules We believe our facility contracts benefit the inpatient

facility by establishing stable and consistent provider of hospitalist services to that facility while we benefit by

having our affiliated hospitalists obtain unassigned patients through the emergency department expand the base



of the referral relationships within the facility and strengthen our contractual revenue base In these contracted

facilities billings to third-party payors for direct patient care constitute the most significant source of our

revenue

The term of these contracts varies between facilities but they can typically be terminated with cause for

various reasons and usually contain provisions allowing for termination without cause by either party upon 90

days notice Agreements with the inpatient facilities typically contain confidentiality provisions and requirements

that the facilities maintain their own insurance

Contracts with Health Plans

Our regional management teams negotiate health plan contracts on behalf of our affiliated hospitalists in

their local markets These agreements vary from plan to plan and payment is typically negotiated fee per

service Our regional management teams assist our affiliated hospitalists with any required credentialing with

these plans provide ongoing contract management and maintain the relationships with the health plans We
believe that these health plan contracts can enhance our practices by capturing additional patient volumes as well

as promoting prompt payment for services

Affiliated Hospitalists and Practice Groups

Our practice groups and affiliated hospitalists are responsible for the provision of medical care to patients

Our affiliated hospitalists are employees of either our wholly-owned subsidiaries or affiliated professional

organizations Our affiliated professional organizations are separate legal entities comprised of corporations

limited liability companies and limited partnerships For financial reporting purposes we consolidate the

revenues and expenses of all our practice groups that we own or manage because we have controlling financial

interest in these practices based on applicable accounting rules as described in our accompanying financial

statements We provide all of the non-medical administrative and management services necessary for the

operations of each of our affiliated professional organizations under comprehensive long-term management

agreements Under the terms of these agreements we are paid for the provision of these non-medical

management services based upon either the financial performance of the applicable practice group or fixed fee

Each agreement is for term of 20
years

with 10
year

automatic renewal periods which we may terminate at any

time with or without cause with 30 days prior written notice to the affiliated professional organization

Agreements with our affiliated professional organizations contain confidentiality provision and power of

attorney appointing our company as its attorney-in-fact

Each affiliated professional organization is organized or qualified to do business in state where only

physician-owned professional entity may provide medical services and each affiliated professional organization

is owned by our Chief Medical Officer who is physician To ensure our continued affiliation with and

management of the affiliated professional organizations we have entered into succession agreement with each

affiliated professional organization and physician owner that prohibits the sale or transfer of the ownership

interests of the affiliated professional organization to non-physicians and provides for the repurchase of such

ownership interests by the affiliated professional organization for nominal amount upon the occurrence of

certain events

Our affiliated hospitalists are employed under contracts which typically have
one-year employment terms

with automatic extensions The contracts can be terminated with cause for various reasons and generally contain

provisions allowing for termination without cause by either party upon 30 to 60 days notice Agreements with

our affiliated hospitalists generally contain confidentiality provision and non-compete and/or non-solicitation

provision The scope and enforceability of these provisions varies from state to state

Our affiliated hospitalists generally are paid competitive fixed base salary and most are eligible to

participate in our physician incentive plan which provides varying bonuses based upon productivity and practice

group profitability We typically provide professional liability and workers compensation coverage along with

vacation sick leave continuing medical education health disability and 401k benefits



We also utilize the services of independent contractors for certain of our health plan contracts The

independent contractors are paid on per case basis

Competition

The healthcare industry is highly competitive and the market for hospitalists within this industry is highly

fragmented We believe we are the largest dedicated hospitalist company in the United States based on revenues

patient encounters and number of affiliated hospitalists In each of our local markets and throughout the

United States there are hospitalist groups
of varying sizes as well as privately-owned hospitalist companies

with which our practice groups compete

Companies in other segments of the healthcare industry such as emergency department service companies
also provide hospitalist services Competitors of this nature on national basis include companies such as Team
Health and EmCare each of which may have greater financial and other resources available to them including

greater access to physicians and greater access to potential customers

In addition because of the fragmented nature of the hospitalist market and the ability of physicians to

provide services in
any hospital where they have certain credentials competition for growth in existing and

expanding markets is not limited to our large competitors with substantial financial resources available to them
We also compete against local physician groups for qualified physicians and sometimes with hospitals

themselves to provide hospitalist services

We are also dependent on our affiliated hospitalists to provide services and generate revenue Competition

for qualified physicians to act as hospitalists is intense We compete with many types of healthcare providers

including teaching research and government institutions hospitals and other practice groups for the services of

such physicians

Geographic Coverage

We currently provide services in the following eighteen states Arizona California Colorado Delaware

florida Georgia Illinois Massachusetts Michigan Missouri Nevada New Hampshire North Carolina Ohio
Oklahoma Pennsylvania Tennessee and Texas During 2008 approximately 67% of our net revenue was

generated by operations in Arizona florida Michigan Missouri and Texas In particular Texas accounted for

approximately 26% of our net revenue for 2008 Our growth strategy contemplates that we will continue to grow
our business in part by expanding into new markets outside of the eighteen states in which we currently operate

Professional Liability and Other Insurance Coverage

Our business has an inherent risk of claims of medical malpractice against our affiliated physicians and us

We contract and pay premiums for third-party professional liability insurance that indemnifies us and our

affiliated hospitalists on claims-made basis for losses incurred related to medical malpractice litigation

Professional liability coverage is required in order for our affiliated hospitalists to maintain hospital privileges

We self-insure our liabilities to pay deductibles under our professional liability insurance coverage We record in

our consolidated financial statements estimates for our liabilities for self-insured deductibles and claims incurred

but not reported based on actuarial loss projections using historical loss patterns Liabilities for claims incurred

but not reported are not discounted Because many factors can affect historical and future loss patterns the

determination of an appropriate reserve involves complex subjective judgment and actual results may vary

significantly from estimates If the deductibles and other amounts that we are actually required to pay materially
exceed our estimates our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected

We believe that our insurance
coverage is appropriate based upon our claims experience and the nature and

risks of our business In addition to the known incidents that have resulted in the assertion of claims we cannot

be certain that our insurance coverage will be adequate to cover liabilities arising out of claims asserted against

10



us our affiliated professional organizations or our affiliated hospitalists in the future where the outcomes of such

claims are unfavorable We believe that the ultimate resolution of all pending claims including liabilities in

excess of our insurance coverage will not have material adverse effect on our financial position results of

operations or cash flows however there can be no assurance that future claims will not have such material

adverse effect on our business

In December 2008 we renewed our annual professional liability insurance policy for 2009 Unlike our

claims-made policy in effect in 2008 that contained self-insurance retention the 2009 claims-made policy

provides first dollar coverage on new claims reported in 2009 There can be no assurance that we will obtain

substantially similar coverage as is provided under the 2009 policy at acceptable costs and on favorable terms

upon expiration

We also maintain general liability casualty workers compensation director and officer and other third-

party insurance coverage subject to deductibles and other restrictions in accordance with industry standards We

believe that our insurance coverage is appropriate based upon our claims experience and the nature and risks of

our business However we cannot assure that any pending or future claim will not be successful or if successful

will not exceed the limits of available insurance coverage

Employees

The following is an approximate break-down of the affiliated hospitalists and non-clinical staff employed by

our wholly-owned subsidiaries or our affiliated professional organizations by job classification as of

December 31 2008

Job Description Full-Time Part-Time Total

Physicians 531 52 583

Non-Physician Providers 67 76

Non-Clinical Employees 338 31 369

Totals 936 92 1028

In addition to the full-time and part-time employees included above we have employment or independent

contractor agreements with over 440 other physicians and non-physician providers who provide episodic care as

needed All of our employees are located in the United States None of our employees are covered by collective

bargaining agreements We have had no labor-related work stoppages and we believe we have positive relations

with our employees

Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of our business we become involved in pending and threatened legal actions and

proceedings most of which involve claims of medical malpractice related to medical services provided by our

affiliated hospitalists We may also become subject to other lawsuits which could involve significant claims and

or significant defense costs

We believe based upon our review of pending actions and proceedings that the outcome of such legal

actions and proceedings will not have material adverse effect on our business The outcome of such actions and

proceedings however cannot be predicted with certainty and an unfavorable resolution of one or more of them

could have material adverse effect on our business in future period

Company Information

Founded in 1995 by Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Adam Singer M.D we were incorporated

in Delaware in January 1998 Our principal executive offices are located at 4605 Lankershim Boulevard Suite

617 North Hollywood California 91602 Our telephone number is 888 4IPC-DOC 888-447-2362 We

maintain website at www.hospitalist.com
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Available Information

Our internet website address is www.hospitalist.com Our Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports
on Form 10-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished

pursuant to

Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are available through our internet website as soon as

reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with or furnish it to the Securities and Exchange
Commission Our internet website and the information contained therein or connected thereto is not part of and

is not incorporated by reference into this Report

REGULATORY MATTERS

Significant Federal and State Healthcare Laws Governing Our Business

As healthcare company our operations and relationships with healthcare providers such as hospitals other

healthcare facilities and healthcare professionals are subject to extensive and increasing regulation by numerous

federal state and local government entities These laws and regulations often are interpreted broadly and
enforced aggressively by multiple government agencies including the 01G the U.S Department of Justice and
various state authorities We have included brief descriptions of some but not all of the laws and regulations that

affect our business

finding that claims for services were not covered or not payable or the imposition of sanctions associated

with violation of any of these healthcare laws and regulations could have material adverse effect on our

business financial condition and results of operations We cannot guarantee that our arrangements or business

practices will not be subject to government scrutiny or be found to violate certain healthcare laws Government

audits investigations and prosecutions even if we ultimately are found to be without fault can be costly and

disruptive to our business Moreover changes in healthcare legislation or government regulation may restrict our

existing operations limit the expansion of our business or impose additional compliance requirements and costs

any of which could have material adverse affect on our business financial condition and results of operations

False Claims Acts

The federal civil False Claims Act imposes civil liability on individuals or entities that submit false or

fraudulent claims for payment to the federal government The False Claims Act provides in part that the federal

government may bring lawsuit against any person whom it believes has knowingly or recklessly presented or

caused to be presented false or fraudulent request for payment from the federal government or who has made
false statement or used false record to get claim for payment approved Private parties may initiate qui tam

whistleblower lawsuits against any person or entity under the False Claims Act in the name of the government
and may share in the proceeds of successful suit

The federal government has used the False Claims Act to prosecute wide variety of alleged false claims

and fraud allegedly perpetrated against Medicare and state healthcare programs Medicaid By way of

illustration these prosecutions may be based upon alleged coding errors billing for services not rendered billing

services at higher payment rate than appropriate and billing for care that is not considered medically necessary
The government and number of courts also have taken the position that claims presented in violation of certain

other statutes including the federal Anti-Kickback Statute or the Stark Law can be considered violation of the

False Claims Act based on the theory that provider impliedly certifies compliance with all applicable laws

regulations and other rules when submitting claims for reimbursement

Penalties for False Claims Act violations include fines ranging from $5500 to $11000 for each false claim

plus up to three times the amount of damages sustained by the government False Claims Act violation may
provide the basis for the imposition of administrative penalties as well as exclusion from participation in

governmental healthcare programs including Medicare and Medicaid In addition to the provisions of the False

Claims Act which provide for civil enforcement the federal government also can use several criminal statutes to

prosecute persons who are alleged to have submitted false or fraudulent claims for payment to the federal

government
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number of states have enacted false claims acts that are similar to the federal False Claims Act Even

more states are expected to do so in the future because Section 6031 of the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 or the

DRA amended the federal law to encourage these types of changes along with corresponding increase in state

initiated false claims enforcement efforts Under the DRA if state enacts false claims act that is at least as

stringent as the federal statute and that also meets certain other requirements the state will be eligible to receive

greater share of any monetary recovery obtained pursuant to certain actions brought under the states false

claims act The 01G in consultation with the Attorney General of the United States is responsible for

determining if states false claims act complies with the statutory requirements Currently 22 states and the

District of Columbia have some form of state false claims acts As of February 2009 the OIG has determined

that thirteen of these satisfy the DRA standards and we anticipate this figure will continue to increase The

thirteen states are California Georgia Hawaii Illinois Indiana Massachusetts Nevada New York Rhode

Island Tennessee Texas Virginia and Wisconsin Of the eighteen states in which we currently operate the

following twelve states have some form of state false claims act California Delaware Florida Georgia

Illinois Massachusetts Michigan Nevada New Hampshire Oklahoma Tennessee and Texas

Anti-Kickback Statutes

The federal Anti-Kickback Statute contained in the Social Security Act prohibits the knowing and willful

offer payment solicitation or receipt of
any

form of remuneration in return for or to induce the referral of

beneficiary of Medicare Medicaid or other governmental healthcare programs the furnishing or arranging for

the furnishing of items or services reimbursable under Medicare Medicaid or other governmental healthcare

programs or the purchase lease or order or arranging or recommending the purchasing leasing or ordering of

any
item or service reimbursable under Medicare Medicaid or other governmental healthcare programs Some

courts and the OIG interpret the statute to cover any arrangement where even one purpose of the remuneration is

to influence referrals violation of the Anti-Kickback Statute is felony punishable by imprisonment and

criminal and civil fines of up to $50000 per violation and three times the amount of the unlawful remuneration

violation also can result in exclusion from Medicare Medicaid or other governmental healthcare programs

Due to the breadth of the Anti-Kickback Statutes broad prohibition there are few statutory exceptions

that protect various common business transactions and arrangements from prosecution In addition the 010 has

published safe harbor regulations that outline other arrangements that also are deemed protected from

prosecution under the Anti-Kickback Statute provided all applicable criteria are met The failure of an activity to

meet all of the applicable safe harbor criteria does not necessarily mean that the particular arrangement violates

the Anti-Kickback Statute but these arrangements will be subject to scrutiny by enforcement agencies

Some states have enacted statutes and regulations similar to the Anti-Kickback Statute but which may be

applicable regardless of the payor source of the patient These state laws may contain exceptions and safe harbors

that are different from those of the federal law and that may vary from state to state

Federal Stark Law

The federal Stark Law also known as the physician self-referral law generally prohibits physician from

referring Medicare and Medicaid patients to an entity including hospitals providing designated health

services if the physician or member of the physicians immediate family has financial relationship with

the entity unless specific exception applies Designated health services include among other services inpatient

and outpatient hospital services clinical laboratory services certain imaging services and other items or services

that our affiliated physicians may order The prohibition applies regardless of the reasons for the financial

relationship and the referral and therefore unlike the federal Anti-Kickback Statute intent to violate the law is

not required Like the Anti-Kickback Statute the Stark Law contains number of statutory and regulatory

exceptions intended to protect certain types of transactions and business arrangements from penalty Compliance

with all elements of the applicable Stark Law exception is mandatory
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The penalties for violating the Stark Law include the denial of payment for services ordered in violation of

the statute mandatory refunds of any sums paid for such services and civil penalties of up to $15000 for each

violation double damages and possible exclusion from future participation in the governmental healthcare

programs person who engages in scheme to circumvent the Stark Laws prohibitions may be fined up to

$100000 for each applicable arrangement or scheme

Some states have enacted statutes and regulations similar to the Stark Law but which may be applicable to

the referral of patients regardless of their payor source and which may apply to different types of services These

state laws may contain statutory and regulatory exceptions that are different from those of the federal law and

that may vary from state to state

Health Information Privacy and Security Standards

Among other directives the Administrative Simplification Provisions of the Health Insurance Portability

and Accountability Act of 1996 or HIPAA required the Department of Health and Human Services or HHS to

adopt standards to protect the privacy and security of certain health-related information The HIPAA privacy

regulations contain detailed requirements concerning the use and disclosure of individually identifiable health

information by HIPAA covered entities which include entities like IPC our affiliated hospitalists and practice

groups

In addition to the privacy requirements HIPAA covered entities must implement certain administrative

physical and technical security standards to protect the integrity confidentiality and availability of certain

electronic health information received maintained or transmitted HIPAA also implemented the use of standard

transaction code sets and standard identifiers that covered entities must use when submitting or receiving certain

electronic healthcare transactions including activities associated with the billing and collection of healthcare

claims

Violations of the HIPAA privacy and security standards may result in civil and criminal penalties

including civil money penalties of$100 per incident to maximum of $25000 per person per year per

standard violated and depending upon the nature of the violation fines of up to $250000 and imprisonment

for up to ten years

Many states in which we operate also have laws that protect the privacy and security of confidential

personal information These laws may be similar to or even more protective than the federal provisions Not only

may some of these state laws impose fines and penalties upon violators but some may afford private rights of

action to individuals who believe their personal information has been misused

Fee-Splitting and Corporate Practice of Medicine

Some states have laws that prohibit business entities such as IPC from practicing medicine employing

physicians to practice medicine exercising control over medical decisions by physicians also known collectively

as the corporate practice of medicine or engaging in certain arrangements such as fee-splitting with physicians

In some states these prohibitions are expressly stated in statute or regulation while in other statesthe

prohibition is matter of judicial or regulatory interpretation Of the eighteen states in which we currently

operate we believe that the following thirteen states prohibit the corporate practice of medicine California

Colorado Georgia Illinois Massachusetts Michigan Nevada New Hampshire North Carolina Ohio

Pennsylvania Tennessee and Texas

In states that prohibit the corporate practice of medicine we operate by maintaining long-term management
contracts with affiliated professional organizations which are each owned and operated by physicians and which

employ or contract with additional physicians to provide hospitalist services Under these arrangements we

perform only non-medical administrative services do not represent that we offer medical services and do not

exercise influence or control over the practice of medicine by the physicians or the affiliated professional

organizations
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For financial reporting purposes however we consolidate the revenues and expenses
of all our practice

groups that we own or manage because we have controlling financial interest in these practices based on

applicable accounting rules and as described in our accompanying financial statements In states where

fee-splitting is prohibited between physicians and non-physicians the fees that we receive through our

management contracts have been established on basis that we believe complies with the applicable state laws

Some of the relevant laws regulations and agency interpretations in the states in which we operate have

been subject to limited judicial and regulatory interpretation Moreover state laws are subject to change and

regulatory authorities and other parties including our affiliated physicians may assert that despite these

arrangements we are engaged in the prohibited corporate practice of medicine or that our arrangements

constitute unlawful fee-splitting If this occurred we could be subject to civil or criminal penalties our contracts

could be found legally invalid and unenforceable in whole or in part or we could be required to restructure our

contractual arrangements

Deficit Reduction Act of 2005

Among other mandates the DRA created new Medicaid Integrity Program designed to enhance federal

and state efforts to detect Medicaid fraud waste and abuse Additionally section 6032 of the DRA requires

entities that make or receive annual Medicaid payments of $5.0 million or more from any one state to provide

their employees contractors and agents with written policies and employee handbook materials on federal and

state False Claims Acts and related statues At this time we are not required to comply with section 6032

because we receive less than $5.0 million in Medicaid payments annually from any one state However we will

likely be required to comply in the future as our Medicaid billings increase but we cannot predict when that will

occur We also cannot predict what new state statutes or enforcement efforts may emerge from the DRA and

what impact they may have on our operations

Other Federal Healthcare Fraud and Abuse Laws

We are also subject to other federal healthcare fraud and abuse laws Under HIPAA there are two additional

federal crimes that could have an impact on our business Health Care Fraud and False Statements Relating to

Health Care Matters The Health Care Fraud statute prohibits any person from knowingly and recklessly

executing scheme or artifice to defraud any healthcare benefit program Healthcare benefit programs include

both government and private payors violation of this statute is felony and may result in fines imprisonment

and/or exclusion from governmental healthcare programs

The False Statements Relating to Health Care Matters statute prohibits knowingly and willfully falsifying

concealing or covering material fact by any trick scheme or device or making any materially false fictitious or

fraudulent statement in connection with the delivery of or payment for healthcare benefits items or services

violation of this statute is felony and may result in fines and/or imprisonment

The OIG may impose administrative sanctions or civil monetary penalties against any person or entity that

knowingly presents or causes to be presented claim for payment to governmental healthcare program for

services that were not provided as claimed is fraudulent is for service by an unlicensed physician or is for

medically unnecessary
services Violations may result in penalties of up to $10000 per claim treble damages

and exclusion from governmental healthcare funded programs such as Medicare and Medicaid In addition the

010 may impose administrative sanctions against any physician who knowingly accepts payment from hospital

as an inducement to reduce or limit services provided to Medicare and Medicaid program beneficiaries

Other State Fraud and Abuse Provisions

In addition to the state laws previously described we also are subject to other state fraud and abuse statutes

and regulations Many of the states in which we operate have adopted form of anti-kickback law self-referral

prohibition and false claims and insurance fraud prohibition The scope
of these laws and the interpretations of

15



them vary from state to state and are enforced by state courts and regulatory authorities each with broad

discretion Generally state laws reach to all healthcare services and not just those covered under governmental

healthcare program determination of liability under any of these laws could result in fines and penalties and

restrictions on our ability to operate in these states We cannot assure that our arrangements or business practices

will not be subject to government scrutiny or be found to violate applicable fraud and abuse laws

Fair Debt Collection Practices Act

Some of our operations may be subject to compliance with certain provisions of the Fair Debt Collection

Practices Act and comparable statutes in many states Under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act third-party

collection company is restricted in the methods it uses to contact consumer debtors and elicit payments with

respect to placed accounts Requirements under state collection agency statutes vary with most requiring

compliance similar to that required under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act

U.S Sentencing Guidelines

The U.S Sentencing Guidelines are used by federal judges in determining sentences in federal criminal

cases The guidelines are advisory not mandatory With respect to corporations the guidelines state that having

an effective ethics and compliance program may be relevant mitigating factor in determining sentencing To

comply with the guidelines the compliance program must be reasonably designed implemented and enforced

such that it is generally effective in preventing and detecting criminal conduct The guidelines also state that

corporation should take certain steps such as periodic monitoring and appropriately responding to detected

criminal conduct OIG has followed the model of the Sentencing Guidelines in issuing its Compliance Guidances

which also are advisory not mandatory While we have attempted to develop and implement our corporate

compliance program to be consistent with these guidelines we cannot be certain that court or the OIG would

agree

Licensing Certification Accreditation and Related Laws and Guidelines

Our clinical personnel are subject to numerous federal state and local licensing laws and regulations

relating to among other things professional credentialing and professional ethics Since we perform services at

hospitals and other
types of healthcare facilities we may indirectly be subject to laws applicable to those entities

as well as ethical guidelines and operating standards of professional trade associations and private accreditation

commissions such as the American Medical Association and the Joint Commission There are penalties for

non-compliance with these laws and standards including loss of professional license civil or criminal fines and

penalties loss of hospital admitting privileges and exclusion from participation in various governmental and

other third-party healthcare programs

Professional Licensing Requirements

Qur affiliated hospitalists mustsalisfy and maintain their professional licensing in the states where they

practice medicine Activities that qualify as professional misconduct under state law may subject them to

sanctions or to even lose their license and could possibly subject us to sanctions as well Some state boards of

medicine impose reciprocal discipline that is if physician is disciplined for having committed professional

misconduct in one state where he or she is licensed another state where he or she is also licensed may impose the

same discipline even though the conduct occurred in another state Professional licensing sanctions may also

result in exclusion from participation in governmental healthcare programs such as Medicare and Medicaid as

well as other third-party programs
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH THIRD-PARTY PAYORS

Medicare Medicaid and Other Governmental Programs

We derive significant portion of our revenue from services rendered to beneficiaries of Medicare

Medicaid and other governmental healthcare programs Participation in these programs requires compliance with

stringent and often complex enrollment and reimbursement requirements The applicable standards are subject to

statutory and regulatory changes administrative rulings and new interpretations of policy that may be difficult to

predict and that may require significant changes to our operations

Our reimbursement typically is conditioned on our affiliated hospitalists providing the correct procedure and

diagnosis codes and properly documenting both the service itself and the medical necessity for the service

Incorrect or incomplete documentation and billing information or the incorrect selection of codes for the level

and type of service provided could result in non-payment for services rendered or lead to allegations of billing

fraud

Direct and indirect cost containment efforts at the state and federal level may materially impact

reimbursement for our services We believe these trends in cost containment will continue The Medicare

program reimburses for our services based upon the rates in its Physician Fee Schedule and each year the

Medicare program updates the Physician Fee Schedule reimbursement rates Many private payors use the

Medicare fee schedule to determine their own reimbursement rates The current Medicare fee schedule

methodology has significantly reduced the overall reimbursement rates for physician services because it relies

upon in
part target-setting formula system called the Sustainable Growth Rate or SGR The SGR is target

rate of growth in spending for physician services which is intended to control the growth of Medicare

expenditures for physicians services The annual fee schedule update is adjusted to reflect the comparison of

actual expenditures to target expenditures Because one of the factors for calculating the SGR system is linked to

the growth in the U.S gross domestic product or GDP the SGR formula may result in negative payment

update if growth in Medicare beneficiaries use of services exceeds GDP growth situation which has occurred

in the past and whose reoccurrence we cannot predict

While Congress has intervened in the past few years to mitigate the negative reimbursement impact

associated with the SGR formula there is no guarantee that Congress will continue to do so in the future

Moreover the existing methodology may result in significant yearly fluctuations in the Medicare Physician Fee

Schedule amounts which may be unrelated to changes in the actual costs of providing physician services Unless

there is change in the Medicare Physician Fee Schedule methodology the uncertainty regarding reimbursement

rates and fluctuation will continue to exist See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of OperationsFactors Affecting Operating ResultsRate Changes by Government

Sponsored Programs

Because governmental healthcare programs generally reimburse us on fee schedule basis rather than on

charge-related basis we generally cannot increase our revenues from these programs by increasing the amount

we charge for our services If our costs increase we may not be able to recover our increased costs from these

programs Government and private payors have taken and may continue to take steps to control the cost

eligibility for use and delivery of healthcare services as result of budgetary constraints cost containment

pressures and other reasons These cost containment measures and other market changes have generally restricted

our ability to recover or shift to non-governmental payors any increased costs that we experience Our business

model and financial operations may be materially affected by these developments Governmental healthcare

programs and other third-party payors may disallow in whole or in part our requests for reimbursement based

on determinations that certain amounts are not reimbursable they were for services provided that were not

medically necessary there was lack of sufficient supporting documentation or for number of other reasons

Additional factors that could complicate our billing include but are not limited to

disputes between payors as to which party is responsible for payment
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the difficulty of adherence to specific compliance requirements diagnosis coding and various other

procedures mandated by the government and

failure to obtain proper physician credentialing and documentation in order to bill governmental

payors

We also are subject to governmental reviews and audits of our bills and claims for reimbursement These

reviews can occur before we are paid for services pre-payment review or after we have already received

payment post-payment review Pre-payment reviews can lead to delays in reimbursement In the context of

post-payment reviews we may be required to make retroactive adjustments to amounts previously paid to us if

finding is made that we were incorrectly reimbursed The results of any of these types of reviews may cause us to

lose eligibility for certain programs in the event of certain types of non-compliance or subject us to other fines or

penalties Also some of our affiliated hospitalists may have to participate in payor re-education programs These

governmental healthcare programs are subject to statutory and regulatory changes administrative rulings

interpretations and determinations all of which may materially increase or decrease the payments we receive for

our services as well as affect the cost of providing services

Our business could be adversely affected by reductions in or limitations of reimbursement amounts or rates

under the governmental healthcare programs reductions in funding of these programs or elimination of coverage
for certain individuals or treatments under these programs Other delays and uncertainties in the reimbursement

process may adversely affect our level of accounts receivable increase the overall cost of collection adversely

affect our working capital and cause us to incur additional borrowing costs Unfavorable resolutions of future

regulatory reviews or investigations either individually or in the aggregate could have material adverse effect

on our business financial condition and results of operations

Commercial Payors

We also receive compensation from non-governmental healthcare programs or commercial payors As with

government payors the manner and timing with which commercial payors reimburse us for our services may
adversely affect our operations We may be subject to among other things reductions or limitations in the

reimbursement amounts or rates we receive disallowances for services provided pre-payment and post-payment

audits delays in payment and delays or restrictions in our ability to credential new physicians

Some of our relationships are pursuant to contracts with commercial payors that offer wide variety of

health insurance products such as Health Maintenance Organizations Preferred Provider Organizations and

Exclusive Provider Organizations These organizations are subject to various state laws and regulations

including federal Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 or ERISA requirements We try to

secure mutually agreeable contracts with payors that enable our affiliated hospitalists to be listed as in-network

participants within the payors provider networks Subject to applicable laws and regulations the terms
conditions and compensation rates of our contracts with commercial third-party payors are negotiated and often

vary widely across markets and among payors

In some cases our contracts with commercial payors typically provide for discounted fee-for-service

arrangements and grant each party the right to terminate the contracts without cause upon prior written notice If

we do not have contractual relationship with health insurance payor we generally bill the payor our full billed

charges If payment is less than billed charges we bill the balance to the patient subject to state and federal

billing practice laws and regulations Although we maintain standard billing and collections procedures with

appropriate discounts for prompt payment we also provide discounts in certain hardship situations where

patients and their families do not have financial resources necessary to pay the amount due for services rendered

Any amounts written-off related to self-pay patients are based on the specific facts and circumstances related to

each individual patient account We cannot guarantee that the rates of payment we receive will cover the costs of

our services
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Industry Operating Environment

Political economic and regulatory influences are subjecting the healthcare industry in the United States to

fundamental change We anticipate that Congress and state legislatures may continue to review and assess

alternative healthcare delivery and payment systems and may in the future propose and adopt legislation

effecting fundamental changes in the healthcare delivery system Congress and state legislatures have adopted

and may further consider statutory changes affecting healthcare reform There can be no assurance as to the

ultimate content timing or effect of
any

healthcare reform legislation nor is it possible at this time to estimate

the impact of any potential legislation It is possible that the changes to governmental healthcare program

reimbursements may serve as precedent to possible changes in other payors reimbursement policies in manner

adverse to us Similarly changes in private payor
reimbursements could lead to adverse changes in Medicare and

other governmental healthcare programs which could have material adverse effect on our business financial

condition or results of operations

Corporate Compliance Program

We are committed to complying with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing the

provision of healthcare services In order to encourage culture of compliance we have operated formal

corporate compliance program since 1999 Our compliance officer and executive compliance committee are

essential to implementation of our program The members of the executive compliance committee include our

senior officers and our compliance officer All individuals affiliated with our organization including the

members of our board of directors are bound by our compliance program

Our compliance program is modeled after compliance guidance provided by the 01G with specific attention

to the OIG Compliance Program Guidance for Third-Party Medical Billing Companies 1998 and the OJG

Compliance Program Guidance for Individual and Small Physician Practices 2000 The primary compliance

program components the OIG has recommended all of which we have implemented include

development of written Code of Conduct

development of extensive written compliance policies and procedures based upon the regulatory risks

of our business

the designation of compliance officer and compliance committee

the development and implementation of regular training programs

open lines of communication for compliance questions and concerns

process
for responding appropriately to detected misconduct

regular auditing and other internal monitoring techniques and

system of discipline and accountability including the development of corrective action to address

detected offenses

We regularly monitor updates from government enforcement entities and all
payors

that may pertain to the

operation of our Compliance Program and our business We adjust our compliance materials and company

policies and procedures accordingly

The goal of our Compliance Program is to prevent detect mitigate respond and resolve regulatory risks

Nevertheless we cannot assure you that our program will detect and rectify all compliance issues in all markets

and for all time periods

As with other healthcare companies that operate corporate compliance programs from time to time we

identify practices that may have resulted in Medicare or Medicaid overpayments or other regulatory and payment

issues In such cases it is our practice to disclose the issue to the respective programs and if appropriate to
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refund any resulting overpayments While such disclosures and repayments are usually accepted without further

action it is possible that such disclosures and repayments will result in allegations that we have violated

applicable laws regulations or payor guidance leading to investigations and possible civil or criminal

enforcement actions

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

The following are important factors that could cause actual results or events to differ materially from those

contained in any forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the Company In addition the risks and

uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face Unforeseen risks could arise and problems or issues

that we now view as minor could become more significant If we are unable to adequately respond to these risks

and uncertainties our business financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely

affected Additionally we cannot be certain or give any assurances that any actions taken to reduce known risks

and uncertainties will be effective

The healthcare industry is complex and intensely regulated at the federal state and local levels and

government authorities may determine that we have failed to comply with applicable laws or regulations

As company involved in the provision of healthcare services we are subject to myriad of federal state

and local laws and regulations There are significant costs involved in complying with these laws and regulations

Moreover if we are found to have violated any applicable laws or regulations we could be subject to civil and/or

criminal damages fines sanctions or penalties including exclusion from participation in governmental
healthcare programs such as Medicare and Medicaid We may also be required to change our method of

operations These consequences could be the result of current conduct or even conduct that occurred number of

years ago We also could incur significant costs merely if we become the subject of an investigation or legal

proceeding alleging violation of these laws and regulations We cannot predict whether federal state or local

government will determine that we are not operating in accordance with law or whether the laws will change in

the future and impact our business Any of these actions could have material adverse effect on our business

financial condition and results of operations

The following is non-exhaustive list of some of the more significant healthcare laws and regulations that

affect us

federal laws including the federal False Claims Act that provide for penalties against entities and

individuals which knowingly or recklessly making claims to Medicare Medicaid and other

governmental healthcare programs as well as third-party payors that contain or are based upon false or

fraudulent information

provision of the Social Security Act commonly referred to as the anti-kickback statute that

prohibits the knowing and willful offering payment solicitation or receipt of any bribe kickback
rebate or other remuneration in cash or in kind in return for the referral or recommendation of patients

for items and services covered in whole or in part by governmental healthcare programs such as

Medicare and Medicaid

provision of the Social Security Act commonly referred to as the Stark Law or physician self-referral

law that subject to limited exceptions prohibits physicians from referring Medicare and Medicaid

patients to an entity for the provision of certain designated health services if the physician or

member of such physicians immediate family has direct or indirect financial relationship with the

entity

provision of the Social Security Act that provides for criminal penalties on healthcare providers who
fail to disclose known overpayments

similar state law provisions pertaining to anti-kickback self-referral and false claims issues which

typically are not limited to relationships involving governmental payors
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provisions of and regulations relating to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of

1996 or HIPAA that provides penalties for knowingly and willfully executing scheme or artifice to

defraud healthcare benefit program or falsifying concealing or covering up material fact or making

any material false fictitious or fraudulent statement in connection with the delivery of or payment for

healthcare benefits items or services

provisions of HIPAA limiting how healthcare providers may use and disclose individually identifiable

health information and the security measures taken in connection with protecting that information and

related systems as well as similaror more stringent state laws

federal and state laws that provide penalties for providers for billing and receiving payment from

governmental healthcare program for services unless the services are medically necessary
and

reasonable adequately and accurately documented and billed using codes that accurately reflect the

type and level of services rendered

federal laws that provide for administrative sanctions including civil monetary penalties for among
other violations inappropriate billing of services to governmental healthcare programs payments to

physicians for inappropriately reducing hospital care lengths of stay for such patients or employing or

contracting with individuals or entities who/which are excluded from participation in governmental

healthcare programs

federal and state laws and policies that require healthcare providers to enroll in the Medicare and

Medicaid programs before submitting any
claims for services to promptly report certain changes in

their operations to the agencies that administer these programs and to re-enroll in these programs when

changes in direct or indirect ownership occur

state laws that prohibit general business entities from practicing medicine controlling physicians

medical decisions or engaging in certain practices such as splitting fees with physicians

laws in some states that prohibit non-domiciled entities from owning and operating medical practices in

their states

provisions of the Social Security Act that require entities that make or receive annual Medicaid

payments of $5 million or more from single Medicaid program to provide their employees

contractors and agents with written policies and employee handbook materials on federal and state

false claims acts and related statutes that establish new Medicaid Integrity Program designed to

enhance federal and state efforts to detect Medicaid fraud waste and abuse and that increase financial

incentives for both states and individuals to bring fraud and abuse claims against healthcare companies

and

federal and state laws and regulations restricting the techniques that may be used to collect past due

accounts from consumers such as our patients for services provided to the consumer

Providers in the healthcare industry are the subject offederal and state investigations as well as payor audits

Due to our participation in government and private healthcare programs we are sometimes involved in

inquiries reviews audits and investigations by governmental agencies and private payors of our business

practices including assessments of our compliance with coding billing and documentation requirements Federal

and state government agencies have active civil and criminal enforcement efforts that include investigations of

healthcare companies and their executives and managers Under certain circumstances these investigations can

also be initiated by private individuals under whistleblower provisions which may be incentivized by the

possibility for private recoveries The Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 revised federal law to further encourage

these federal state and individually-initiated investigations against healthcare companies

Responding to these audit and enforcement activities is costly and disruptive to our business operations

even when the allegations are without merit If we are subject to an audit or investigation and finding is made

that we were incorrectly reimbursed we may be required to repay these agencies or private payors or we may be
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subjected to pre-payment reviews which can be time-consuming and result in non-payment or delayed payment
for the services we provide We also may be subject to other financial sanctions or be required to modify our

operations

Our revenue may be negatively impacted by the failure of our affiliated hospitalists to appropriately document

services they provide

We rely upon our affiliated hospitalists to appropriately and accurately complete necessary medical record

documentation and assign appropriate reimbursement codes for their services Reimbursement to us is

conditioned on our affiliated hospitalists providing the correct procedure and diagnosis codes and properly

documenting the services themselves including the level of service provided and the medical necessity for the

services If our affiliated hospitalists have provided incorrect or incomplete documentation or selected inaccurate

reimbursement codes this could result in nonpayment for services rendered or lead to allegations of billing fraud

This could subsequently lead to civil and criminal penalties including exclusion from government healthcare

programs such as Medicare and Medicaid In addition third-party payors may disallow in whole or in part

requests for reimbursement based on determinations that certain amounts are not covered services provided were

not medically necessary or supporting documentation was not adequate Retroactive adjustments may change

amounts realized from third-party payors and result in recoupments or refund demands affecting revenue already

received

Compliance with federal and state privacy laws is expensive and we may be subject to government or private

actions due to privacy and security breaches

We must comply with numerous federal and state laws and regulations governing the collection

dissemination use security and confidentiality of patient-identifiable health information including HIPAA As

part of our medical record keeping third-party billing and other services we collect and maintain patient health

information in paper and electronic format This portion of our IPCLink platform relies solely on the electronic

exchange of patient-identifiable healthcare information New patient health information standards whether

implemented pursuant to federal or state action could have significant effect on the manner in which we handle

healthcare-related data and communicate with payors and compliance with these standards could impose

significant costs on us or limit our ability to offer services thereby negatively impacting the business

opportunities available to us Despite our efforts to prevent security and privacy breaches they may still occur

especially with IPCLink If our non-compliance with existing or new laws and regulations related to patient

health information results in privacy or security breaches we could be subject to monetary fines civil suits civil

penalties or criminal sanctions

Providers must be properly enrolled in governmental healthcare programs such as Medicare and Medicaid

before they can receive reimbursement for providing services and there may be delays in the enrollment

process

Each time new affiliated hospitalist joins us we must enroll the affiliated hospitalist under our applicable

group number for Medicare or Medicaid programs and for certain managed care and private insurance programs
beforewcarr receive hcpit1ist rstOiiºficiaries of those programs The

estimated time to receive approval for the enrollment is sometimes difficult to predict and in recent years the

Medicare program carriers often have not issued these numbers to our affiliated hospitalists in timely manner
These practices result in delayed reimbursement that may adversely affect our cash flow and revenues

We may face malpractice and other lawsuits that may not be covered by insurance

Malpractice lawsuits are common in the healthcare industry The medical malpractice legal environment

varies greatly by state The status of tort reform availability of non-economic damages or the presence or

absence of other statutes such as elder abuse or vulnerable adult statutes influence the incidence and severity of

malpractice litigation We may also be subject to other types of lawsuits which may involve large claims and

significant defense costs Many states have joint and several liability for all healthcare providers who deliver care



to patient and are at least partially liable As result if one healthcare provider is found liable for medical

malpractice for the provision of care to particular patient all other healthcare providers who furnished care to

that same patient including possibly our affiliated hospitalists may also share in the full liability which may be

substantial We currently maintain liability insurance coverage with self-insured retention to cover professional

liability and other claims We cannot be certain that our insurance coverage
will be adequate to cover liabilities

arising out of claims asserted against us our affiliated professional organizations or our affiliated hospitalists In

2006 we had one instance in state with joint and several liability where our insurance coverage was not

adequate to cover liabilities arising out of professional liability claim asserted against us for which we settled

our portion of the claim for the net present value of $1.3 million Settlement of this claim significantly reduced

our pre-tax income but did not significantly impact our cash flows We cannot provide assurance that any future

liabilities will not have material adverse impact on our results of operations cash flows or financial position

Liabilities in excess of our insurance coverage including coverage
for professional liability and other claims

could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations In addition

our professional liability insurance coverage generally must be renewed annually and may not continue to be

available to us in future years at acceptable costs and on favorable terms

We have established reserves for potential medical malpractice liability losses which are subject to inherent

uncertainties and deficiency may lead to reduction in our net income

Our medical malpractice policies are written on claims-made basis We record reserves for our self-

insurance retention and an estimate of our liabilities on an undiscounted basis for claims incurred but not

reported during the policy period based upon actuarial loss projections using our historical loss experience

These insurance reserves are inherently subject to uncertainty as they could be significantly affected if current

and future occurrences differ from historical claim trends and expectations While claims are monitored closely

when estimating reserves the complexity of the claims and wide range of potential outcomes often hampers

timely adjustments to the assumptions used in these estimates The unpredictable nature of the reporting of

claims could result in significant fluctuations in the loss estimate from period to period It is possible that actual

losses and related expenses may differ perhaps substantially from the reserve estimates reflected in our financial

statements We believe the recorded reserves are adequate and we did not record any significant change in

estimate during 2006 In the fourth quarters of 2007 and 2008 we recorded reductions of $0.8 million and $1.0

million respectively in our claims and professional liability reserves because our final 2007 and 2008 year end

actuarial loss projections were less than the interim actuarial loss projections for the year due to favorable trends

in the ratio of claims to our number of encounters and reductions in the estimates of the ultimate costs per claim

If subsequent actual paid claims exceed our estimated reserves we may be required to increase reserves which

would lead to reduction in our future net income Our annual provision for medical malpractice claims as

percentage of net revenues for the years ended December 31 2006 2007 and 2008 were 2.9% 1.4% and 1.1%

respectively

Competition for hospitalists is intense and we may not be able to hire and retain hospitalists to provide

services

We are dependent on our affiliated hospitalists to provide services and generate revenue We compete with

many types of healthcare providers including teaching research and government institutions hospitals and other

practice groups for the services of clinicians The limited number of residents entering the job market each year

and the limited number of other licensed providers seeking to change employers makes it challenging to meet our

hiring needs and may require us to increase hospitalist compensation in manner that decreases our profit

margins The limited number of residents and other licensed providers also impacts our ability to recruit new

hospitalists with the expertise necessary to provide services within our business and our ability to renew contracts

with existing hospitalists on acceptable terms If we do not do so our ability to provide services could be

adversely affected Our 2008 affiliated hospitalist turnover rate was 24% If this turnover rate were to increase

significantly our recruiting efforts could be over-extended our growth could be impeded the consistency of our

services could be negatively affected and our reputation in the healthcare community could be adversely

impacted

23



We may be unable to enforce the non-competition covenants of departed affiliated hospitalists

We usually enter into employment agreements with our affiliated hospitalists which typically can be

tenninated without cause by either party upon prior written notice Substantially all of our affiliated hospitalists

have agreed not to compete within specified geographic area and at specific facilities for one year period after

termination of employment The law governing enforcement of non-compete agreements and other forms of

restrictive covenants varies from state to state

Although we believe that the non-competition and other restrictive covenants of our affiliated hospitalists

are reasonable in
scope and duration and therefore enforceable under applicable state law courts and arbitrators

in some states are reluctant to strictly enforce non-compete agreements and restrictive covenants applicable to

physicians If substantial number of our affiliated hospitalists leave and we are unable to enforce the

non-competition covenants in the employment agreements our business financial condition and results of

operations could be materially adversely affected We cannot predict whether court or arbitration panel would

enforce these covenants and it could be costly to enforce such covenants

Restrictions on immigration may affect our ability to compete for and provide services to our clients which

could adversely affect our ability to meet growth and revenue targets

While all of our affiliated hospitalists have completed residencies in the United States as of December 31
2008 approximately 18.7% are not U.S citizens The ability of these affiliated hospitalists to work in the United

States depends on our ability to obtain the
necessary work visas and work permits Existing and proposed

limitations on and eligibility restrictions for these visas could have significant impact on our ability to recruit

hospitalists Further in response to recent global political events the level of scrutiny in granting visas has

increased New security procedures may delay the issuance of visas and affect our ability to hire hospitalists in

timely manner

Our reliance on work visas for number of our affiliated hospitalists makes us particularly vulnerable to

legislative changes and strict enforcement of new national security procedures as it affects our ability to hire

hospitalists who are not U.S citizens If we are not able to obtain sufficient number of visas for these affiliated

hospitalists or encounter delays or additional costs in obtaining or maintaining such visas our ability to meet our

growth and revenue targets could be adversely affected

We may not make appropriate acquisitions may fail to integrate them into our business and/or these

acquisitions may alter our current payor mix

Our business is partially dependent on locating and acquiring or partnering with medical practices or

individual physicians to provide hospitalist services As part of our acquisition strategy we regularly review

potential acquisition opportunities We believe that there continue to be number of acquisition opportunities

that would be complimentary to our business We currently have no binding commitments to acquire any specific

business or other material assets We cannot predict whether we will be successful in pursuing such acquisition

oppommities or wh rlheconsequences of any such acquisition wouldbe If Wt nOt successful in finding

attractive acquisition candidates that we can acquire on satisfactory terms or if we cannot complete those

acquisitions that we identify we will not be able to realize the benefit of this part of our growth strategy

Furthermore our acquisition strategy involves number of risks and uncertainties including

We may not be able to identify suitable acquisition candidates or strategic opportunities or successfully

implement or realize the expected benefits of any suitable opportunities In addition we compete for

acquisitions with other potential acquirers some of which may have greater financial or operational

resources than we do This competition may intensify due to the ongoing consolidation in the

healthcare industry which may increase our acquisition costs
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We may be unable to successfully integrate completed acquisitions including our recently completed

acquisitions and such acquisitions may fail to achieve the financial results we expected Integrating

completed acquisitions into our existing operations involves numerous short-term and long-term risks

including diversion of our managements attention failure to retain key personnel failure to retain

payor contracts and failure of the acquired entity to be financially successful

We cannot be certain of the extent of any unknown or contingent liabilities of any acquired business

including liabilities for failure to comply with applicable laws We may incur material liabilities for

past activities of acquired businesses Also depending on the location of the acquisition we may be

required to comply with laws and regulations that may differ from those of the states in which our

operations are currently conducted

We may acquire individual or group medical practices that operate with lower profit margins as

compared with our current or expected profit margins or which have different payor mix than our

other practice groups which would reduce our profit margins Depending upon the nature of the local

healthcare market we may not be able to implement our business model which may negatively impact

our revenues and profitability

If we finance acquisitions by issuing equity securities or securities convertible into equity securities

our existing stockholders could be diluted which in turn could adversely affect the market price of

our stock If we finance an acquisition with debt it could result in higher leverage and interest costs As

result if we fail to evaluate and execute acquisitions properly we might not achieve the anticipated

benefits of these acquisitions and we may increase our acquisition costs

Changes in the rates or methods of third-party reimbursements may adversely affect our operations

We derive the majority of our revenue from direct billings to governmental healthcare programs such as

Medicare and Medicaid and private health insurance companies As result any negative changes in the rates or

methods of reimbursement for the services we provide would have significant adverse impact on our revenue

and financial results Government funding for healthcare programs in particular is subject to unpredictable

statutory and regulatory changes administrative rulings interpretations of policy and determinations by

intermediaries and governmental funding restrictions all of which could materially impact program coverage

and reimbursements for our services

The Medicare program reimburses for our services based upon the rates in its Physician Fee Schedule Each

year on January 1st the Medicare program updates the Physician Fee Schedule reimbursement rates Many

private payors use the Medicare Physician Fee Schedule to determine their own reimbursement rates The current

fee schedule methodology has significantly reduced the reimbursement rates for physician services in prior years

While Congress has intervened in the past
few

years to mitigate the impact of this there is no guarantee that

Congress will continue to do so in the future Moreover the existing methodology may result in significant

yearly fluctuations in the Physician Fee Schedule amounts which may be unrelated to changes in the actual costs

of providing physician services Unless there is change in the Medicare Physician Fee Schedule methodology

the uncertainty regarding reimbursement rates and fluctuation will continue to exist In July 2008 Congress

intervened to prevent the implementation of the negative updates resulting from the Physician Fee Schedule

formula for an 18-month period ending December 31 2009 In November 2008 the Centers for Medicare and

Medicaid Services or CMS released the Medicare Physician Fee Schedule which is projected by Medicare to

increase reimbursement rates nationally by an overall average of 1.1% effective January 2009 The overall

rate impact to us may differ from the national average rate increase based upon the Medicare codes we use and

the Medicare geographic locations in which we operate Effective January 2009 we estimate that the rate

change will result in an overall 4.6% weighted average increase in the rates for the Medicare codes we use and an

estimated overall 2.2% increase in our net patient revenue per encounter

Because governmental healthcare programs generally reimburse on fee schedule basis rather than on

charge-related basis we generally cannot increase our revenues from these programs by increasing the amount

we charge for our services If our costs increase we may not be able to recover our increased costs from these
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programs Government and private payors have taken and may continue to take steps to control the cost

eligibility for use and delivery of healthcare services as result of budgetary constraints cost containment

pressures and other reasons We believe that these trends in cost containment will continue These cost

containment measures and other market changes in non-governmental insurance plans have generally restricted

our ability to recover or shift to non-governmental payors any increased costs that we experience Our business

and financial operations may be materially affected by these developments

If we inadvertently employ or contract with an excluded person we may face government sanctions

Individuals and entities can be excluded from participating in the Medicare and Medicaid programs for

violating certain laws and regulations or for other reasons such as the loss of license in any state even if the

individual retains other licensure This means that they and all others are prohibited from receiving payment for

their services rendered to Medicare or Medicaid beneficiaries and if the excluded individual is physician all

services ordered not just provided by such physician are also non-covered and non-payable Entities which

employ or contract with excluded individuals are prohibited from billing the Medicare or Medicaid programs for

the excluded individuals services and are subject to civil monetary penalties if they do The U.S Department of

Health and Human Services Office of the Inspector General or the 01G maintains list of excluded individuals

and entities Although we have instituted policies and procedures through our Compliance Program to minimize

the risks there can be no assurance that we will not inadvertently hire or contract with an excluded person or

that any of our current employees or contracts will not become excluded in the future without our knowledge If

this occurs we may be subject to substantial repayments and civil penalties and the hospitals at which we furnish

services also may be subject to repayments and sanctions for which they may seek recovery from us

The hospitalist industry is competitive

There are other companies and individuals currently providing hospitalist services We compete directly

with national regional and local providers of inpatient healthcare and other companies could enter the market in

the future and divert some or all of our business On national basis our competitors include Team Health and

EmCare each of which may have greater financial and other resources available to them We also compete with

hospitalist groups and privately-owned hospitalist companies in each of our local markets Existing or future

competitors also may seek to compete with us for acquisitions which could have the effect of increasing the

price and reducing the number of suitable acquisitions which would have an adverse impact on our growth

strategy Since there are virtually no capital expenditures required to enter the industry there are few financial

barriers to entry Individual physicians physician groups and companies in other healthcare industry segments

including hospitals with which we have contracts some of which have greater financial marketing and staffing

resources may become competitors in providing hospitalist services and this competition may have material

adverse effect on our business operations and financial position

Because patients do not typically select their hospitalists we are completely reliant on referrals from third

parties

Our business is based on referrals for our services We receive referrals from community medical providers

emergency departments payors and hospitals in the same manner as other medical professionals receive patient

referrals We do not provide compensation or other remuneration to our referral sources for referring patients to

us decrease in these referrals due to competition concerns about the quality of our services and other factors

could result in significant decrease in our revenues and adversely impact our financial condition Similarly we
cannot assure that we will be able to obtain or maintain preferred provider status with significant third-party

payors in the communities where we operate If we are unable to maintain our referral base or our preferred

provider status with significant third-party payors it may negatively impact our revenues and our financial

performance
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Hospitals may terminate their agreements with us or reduce the fees they pay us

We currently derive approximately 5% of our net revenue from contracts directly with hospitals for

hospitalist services Our current partner hospitals may decide not to renew our contracts introduce unfavorable

terms or reduce fees paid to us Any of these events may impact the ability of our practice groups to operate at

such hospitals which would negatively impact our revenue and profitability

Some of the hospitals where our affiliated hospitalists provide services may have their medical staffs closed to

non-contracted hospitalists

In general our affiliated hospitalists may only provide services in hospital where they have certain

credentials called privileges that are granted by the medical staff and controlled by legally binding medical staff

bylaws of the hospital The medical staff decides who will receive privileges and the medical staff of the

hospitals where we currently provide services or wish to provide services could decide that non-contracted

hospitalists can no longer receive privileges to practice there Such decision would limit our ability to furnish

services in hospital decrease the number of our affiliated hospitalists who could provide services or preclude

us from entering new hospitals In addition hospitals may attempt to enter into exclusive contracts for hospitalist

services which would exclude our affiliated hospitalists who are not part of the contracting group from providing

services at that facility or reduce access to certain populations of patients within the hospital

Many states prohibit business entities from owning or controlling medical practices

The laws in many of the states in which we operate or may operate in the future prohibit business entities

from practicing medicine and from exercising control over or employing physicians who practice medicine This

corporate practice of medicine prohibition is intended to prevent unlicensed
persons

from interfering with or

inappropriately influencing the physicians professional judgment These and other laws may also prevent

fee-splitting which is the sharing of professional service income with non-professional or business interests The

interpretation and enforcement of these laws vary significantly from state to state There is risk that state

authorities or courts may find that our relationships with our affiliated hospitalists and our practice groups violate

state corporate practice of medicine and fee-splitting prohibitions In addition authorities or courts could

determine that we have not complied with new laws which may be enacted rendering our arrangements illegal If

any of these events occur we may be subject to fines and penalties and changes in our business model may be

required

We may be impacted by eligibility changes to government and private insurance programs

Due to potential decreased availability of healthcare through private employers the number of patients who

are uninsured or participate in governmental programs may increase shift in payor mix from managed care

and other private payors to government payors or the uninsured may result in reduction in our rates of

reimbursement or an increase in our uncollectible receivables or uncompensated care with corresponding

decrease in our net revenue Changes in the eligibility requirements for governmental programs also could

increase the number of patients who participate in such programs or the number of uninsured patients Even for

those patients who remain with private insurance changes in those programs could increase patient responsibility

amounts resulting in greater risk for us of uncollectible receivables These factors and events could have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

We may have difficulty collecting payments from third-party payors in timely manner

We derive significant revenue from third-party payors and delays in payment or audits leading to refunds to

payors may impact our net revenue We assume the financial risks relating to uncollectible and delayed

payments In the current healthcare environment payors are continuing their efforts to control expenditures for

healthcare including proposals to revise coverage and reimbursement policies We may experience difficulties in

collecting our revenue because third-party payors may seek to reduce or delay payment to which we believe we

are entitled If we are not paid fully and in timely manner for such services or there is finding that we were

incorrectly paid our revenues cash flows and financial condition could be materially adversely affected
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Certain federal and state laws may limit our effectiveness at collecting monies owed to us from patients

We utilize third parties to collect from patients any co-payments and other payments for services that our

hospitalists provide to the patients The federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act restricts the methods that

third-party collection companies may use to contact and seek payment from consumer debtors regarding past due

accounts State laws vary with respect to debt collection practices although most state requirements are similar to

those under the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act If our collection practices or those of our collection agencies

are inconsistent with these standards we may be subject to actual damages and penalties These factors and

events could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operation

Unfavorable changes or conditions could occur in the states where our operations are concentrated

Approximately 67% of our net revenue in 2008 was generated by our operations in five states Arizona

Florida Michigan Missouri and Texas accounted for approximately 14% 11% 8% 8% and 26% respectively

of our revenue in 2008 Adverse changes or conditions affecting these states where our operations are

concentrated such as healthcare reforms changes in laws and regulations reduced Medicaid reimbursements and

government investigations may have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of

operations

If we are unable to effectively adapt to changes in the healthcare industry our business may be harmed

Due to the importance of the healthcare industry in the lives of all Americans federal state and local

legislative bodies frequently pass legislation and promulgate regulations relating to healthcare reform It is

reasonable to believe that there may be increased federal oversight and regulation of the healthcare industry in

the future We cannot assure you as to the ultimate content timing or effect of any healthcare reform legislation

nor is it possible at this time to estimate the impact of potential legislation on our business It is possible that

future legislation enacted by Congress or state legislatures could adversely affect our business or could change
the operating environment of our targeted customers It is possible that the changes to the Medicare or other

governmental healthcare program reimbursements may serve as precedent to possible changes in other payors
reimbursement policies in manner adverse to us Similarly changes in private payor reimbursements could lead

to adverse changes in Medicare and other governmental healthcare programs which could have material

adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

Our business model depends on numerous complex management information systems and any failure to

successfully maintain these systems or implement new systems could materially harm our operations and
result in potential violations of healthcare laws and regulations

We depend on complex specialized integrated management information system and standardized

procedures for operational and financial information as well as for our billing operations We may be unable to

enhance our existing management information systems or implement new management information
systems

where
necessary Additionally we may experience unanticipated delays complications or expenses in

implernennng integrating and operating Our systems Our iia.fiagetheiit information systems may require

modifications improvements or replacements that may require both substantial expenditures as well as

interruptions in operations Our ability to implement these systems is subject to the availability of information

technology and skilled personnel to assist us in creating and implementing these systems Our failure to

successfully implement and maintain all of our systems could have material adverse effect on our business

financial condition and results of operations Further our failure to successfully operate our billing systems could

lead to potential violations of healthcare laws and regulations
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We may in cur significant costs if we are required to adopt any provisions under the Health Information

Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act HITECHAct
The Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act HITECH Act was enacted

into law on February 17 2009 as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 The HITECH

Act contains number of provisions that significantly expand the reach of HIPAA Among the many provisions

of the HITECH Act is the implementation and use of certified Electronic Health Records EHRs Our patient

medical records are maintained and under the custodianship of the healthcare facilities in which we operate

However if we are required to adopt the use of EHRs or any other provisions of the HITECH Act we may incur

significant costs in excess of any incentive reimbursement payments that we may receive from the government

and such excess costs could have material adverse effect on our business operations and financial position

We are dependent upon our key management personnelfor our future success

Our success depends to significant extent on the continued contributions of our key management

personnel including our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Adam Singer M.D for the management of

our business and implementation of our business strategy We have entered into employment agreements with

Dr Singer as well as our other named executive officers Our agreement with Dr Singer has three year term

and the agreements with our other named executive officers have one year terms in each case subject to

automatic renewals We maintain key man life insurance on Dr Singer in the amount of $3.0 million and IPC is

the designated beneficiary of such policy The loss of Dr Singer or other key management personnel could have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

We may not be able to effectively manage our growth

We have experienced significant growth in our business and personnel over the years which we expect to

continue For example from 2006 to 2008 our annual patient encounters increased from 1747000 to 2790000
and we increased our number of hospitalists from 432 to 659 We have managed this growth by augmenting the

staff of our corporate
office and the staff of our fourteen operating regions However we may be unable to

effectively manage this growth going forward with respect to appropriate hiring training and oversight of

personnel or appropriate integration into our systems These events could materially adversely impact our

business financial condition and results of operations

Our intellectual property rights are valuable and if we are unable to protect them or are subject to intellectual

property rights claims our business may be harmed

Our intellectual property rights including those rights related to IPCLink and certain trademarks

copyrights and trade secrets are important assets for us We do not hold any patents protecting our intellectual

property Various events outside of our control pose threat to our intellectual property rights as well as to our

business For example we may be subject to third-party intellectual property rights claims and our technologies

may not be able to withstand any such claims Regardless of the merits of the claims any intellectual
property

claims could be time-consuming and expensive to litigate or settle In addition if any claims against us are

successful we may have to pay substantial monetary damages or discontinue any of our practices that are found

to be in violation of another partys rights We also may have to seek license to continue such practices which

may significantly increase our operating expenses or may not be available to us at all Also the efforts we have

taken to protect our proprietary rights may not be sufficient or effective Any significant impairment of our

intellectual
property rights could harm our business or our ability to compete

The recent economic and credit crisis could have an adverse effect on our business financial condition and

results of operations

The recent economic and credit crisis has reduced the availability of liquidity and credit to fund the

continuation and expansion of many business operations nationally This shortage of liquidity and credit

combined with recent substantial losses in equity markets could lead to an extended national economic recession

and result in an adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations Our ability to access
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the capital markets may be severely restricted at such time when we would like or need to access those markets

which could have negative impact on our growth plans and the flexibility to react to changing economic and

business conditions Although we are unable to determine the specific impact of the current economic conditions

on our business at this time further deterioration or prolonged period of recession could have an adverse

impact on our operations and could impact not only the healthcare decisions of patients but also the solvency of

third-party insurance payors

We might need to raise additional capital which might not be available

We may require additional equity or debt financing for additional working capital for expansion to

consummate acquisitions or if we suffer significant losses In the event of additional financing is unavailable to

us we may be unable to expand or make acquisitions and the price of our common stock may decline

We have substantial amount of debt which may adversely affect our cash flows and our ability to operate

our business

As of December 31 2008 we had secured and unsecured indebtedness of $8.8 million Our indebtedness

could have important consequences For example it could

make us more vulnerable to adverse changes in general economic industry and competitive conditions

and adverse changes in government regulation

require us to dedicate substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our

indebtedness thereby reducing the availability of our cash flows to fund working capital capital

expenditures acquisitions and other general corporate purposes

limit our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in our business and our industry

place us at competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt and

limit our ability to borrow additional amounts for working capital capital expenditures acquisitions

debt service requirements execution of our business strategy or other purposes

Any of these factors could materially adversely affect our business financial condition and results of

operations In addition under specified circumstances our lenders could demand repayment of all of our debt

which would have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations If we

do not have sufficient earnings to service our debt we may be required to refinance all or part of our existing

debt sell assets borrow more money or sell securities none of which we can assure you that we would be able to

do in timely manner on favorable terms or at all

The terms of our debt could restrict our operations particularly our ability to respond to changes in our

business or to take specified actions

Our existing secured debt contains and any future indebtedness would likely contain number of

restrictive covenants that-impose sigiiificaiit Opel atiiig and financial restrietioiison us including restrictions on

our ability to take actions that may be in our best interests Our existing debt includes covenants including

requirements that

generally do not allow us to borrow additional amounts without the approval of our lenders

require us to notify our lender of and grant security interests in newly-acquired companies

allow us to dispose of assets only in accordance with the terms of our existing secured debt

restrict our ability to pay dividends without the approval of our lenders

we do not impair our lenders security interests in our assets and

require us to maintain minimum cash balances
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We may write off intangible assets such as goodwilL

Our intangible assets which consist primarily of goodwill related to our acquisitions are subject to annual

impairment testing Under current accounting standards goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and

we may be subject to impairment losses as circumstances after an acquisition change If we record an impairment

loss related to our goodwill it could have material adverse effect on our results of operations for the year
in

which the impairment is recorded The amount of goodwill recorded at December 31 2008 is $64.0 million as

compared to stockholders equity of $123.0 million

Our quarterly results will likely fluctuate from period to period which could increase the volatility in the price

of our common stock

We have historically experienced and expect to continue to experience quarterly fluctuations in revenue and

net income Absent the impact and timing of acquisitions our net revenue has historically been higher in the first

and fourth quarters of the year primarily due to the following factors

the number of physicians we have on staff during the quarter which may fluctuate based upon the

timing of hires due to the end of the academic
year

for graduating resident physicians and the schedule

of the Internal Medicine Board exams and terminations in our existing practices and

fluctuations in patient encounters which are impacted by hospital census which can be volatile

physician productivity and seasonality due to the higher occurrence of illnesses such as flu and

pneumonia in patient populations in the first quarter

As result of the fluctuations caused by these factors and due to the timing of acquisitions our results of

operations for any quarter are not indicative of results of operations for
any

future period or full year These

variations in our results of operations could contribute to volatility in the price of our common stock

Provisions in our charter documents could limit another partys ability to acquire us and deprive our investors

of the opportunity to obtain takeover premiumfor their securities

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our bylaws contain several provisions that may
make it substantially more difficult for third-party to acquire us This may make it more difficult or expensive

for third-party to acquire majority of our outstanding common stock These provisions also may delay

prevent or deter merger acquisition tender offer proxy contest or other transaction that might otherwise result

in our stockholders receiving premium over the market price for their common stock

Our ability to designate the rights and preferences of undesignated preferred stock could result in the issuance

of stock with rights and preferences that are superior to those of your shares which could reduce the value of

your investment

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation authorizes our board of directors to designate by

resolution different classes and/or series of stock from the 15000000 shares of preferred stock authorized Our

board of directors is also empowered to fix the relative rights preferences privileges and limitations of each

class or series of preferred stock This means that our board of directors may issue shares of preferred stock with

rights and preferences including among other things dividend liquidation redemption and voting rights that are

superior to the rights preferences and privileges of the shares of our common stock In addition we may issue

other securities such as convertible promissory notes that may have rights and preferences that are superior to

those of the shares of our common stock In addition our board of directors has the ability without further

stockholder approval to issue additional shares of our common stock and securities exercisable for convertible

into or exchangeable for shares of our authorized capital stock The ability of our board of directors to designate

the rights and preferences of the preferred stock could impede or deter an unsolicited tender offer merger or

takeover of our business or make change of control of our company difficult to accomplish In addition the

issuance of shares of our common stock or other securities having rights and preferences superior to those of the

shares of common stock being offered could reduce the value of our common stock
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We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock which means that capital appreciation if any
of our common stock will be our stockholders only source of gain

We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock We currently intend to retain all available

funds and any future earnings for use in the operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying

any cash dividends in the foreseeable future In addition the terms of our current as well as any future financing

agreements may preclude us from paying any dividends As result capital appreciation if any of our common
stock will be our stockholders sole source of potential gain for the foreseeable future

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

We lease office space in North Hollywood California for our corporate headquarters The lease will expire

on June 30 2011 In addition we lease number of administrative offices in connection with our regional offices

in particular markets We believe our present facilities are adequate to meet our current and projected needs We
do not view any of these leases or locations for administrative offices as material to our business We expect to

be able to renew each of our leases or lease comparable facilities on terms commercially acceptable to us

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of our business we become involved in pending and threatened legal actions and

proceedings most of which involve claims of medical malpractice related to medical services provided by our

affiliated hospitalists We may also become subject to other lawsuits which could involve significant claims and

or significant defense costs

We believe based upon our review of pending actions and proceedings that the outcome of such legal

actions and proceedings will not have material adverse effect on our business The outcome of such actions and

proceedings however cannot be predicted with certainty and an unfavorable resolution of one or more of them

could have material adverse effect on our business in future period

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

The common stock of the Company has been traded on the NASDAQ Global Market since January 25

2008 the date of our initial public offering under the symbol IPCM On such date we sold 3300000 shares of

common stock and the selling stockholders sold 1900000 shares of common stock The underwriters had an

option to purchase maximum of 705000 additional shares from the selling stockholders to cover over-

allotments of shares which they exercised on January 28 2008 Prior to our initial public offering there had

been no public market for our common stock The initial public offering price of our common stock on

January 25 2008 was $16.00 per share After the offering there were 14844934 shares of our common stock

outstanding

On July 21 2008 we closed follow-on public offering for the sale of 4025000 shares of our common

stock at price of $18.50 per share Of these shares 1135231 shares were newly issued shares sold by us and

2889769 were shares sold by existing stockholders including 525000 shares pursuant to an exercise by the

underwriters of their over-allotment option After the offering there were 16017237 shares of our common

stock outstanding

Following is table presenting the closing sales prices on the NASDAQ Global Market for share of our

common stock by fiscal quarter for fiscal year 2008

High Low

4th Quarter $24.59 $13.46

3rdQuer $28.11 $18.73

2nd Quarter $23.84 $18.82

1st Quarter beginning January 25 2008 $22.48 $16.57

Holders

As of February 26 2009 we had 138 holders of record of our common stock and the closing price on that

date for our common stock was $17.03 per share Because our shares of common stock are held by brokers and

other institutions on behalf of stockholders we are unable to estimate the total number of beneficial owners

represented by these stockholders of record

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock The payment of dividends is within the

discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our earnings capital requirements and operating and

financial position among other factors We expect to retain all of our earnings to finance the expansion and

development of our business and we currently have no plans to pay
dividends in the foreseeable future In

addition our existing credit facility limits and any future debt agreements may restrict our ability to pay

dividends
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Performance Graph

The following graph illustrates comparison of the total cumulative stockholder return on our common
stock since January 25 2008 which is the date our common stock first began trading on the NASDAQ Global

Market to two indices NASDAQ Healthcare Index and Russell 2000 Index Total Return The graph assumes an

initial investment of $100 on January 25 2008 The comparisons in the graph are required by the Securities and

Exchange Commission and are not intended to forecast or be indicative of possible future performance of our

common stock

IPC The Hospitalist

Company Inc $100 $102.64 $101.22 96.58 $114.61 $111.78 91.90 $105.24 $124.77 $125.51 $99.43 $85.22 $82.19

NASDAQ Health

Services Index $100 $101.94 92.82 92.77 97.36 98.85 90.57 97.14 $102.32 99.38 $84.70 $76.98 $80.65

Russell 2000 Index

Total Return $100 $103.59 99.74 $100.16 $104.36 $109.15 $100.75 $104.47 $108.24 99.62 $78.90 $69.56 $73.60

NOTE Data complete through last fiscal year

NOTE Peer group indices use beginning of period market capitalization weighting

NOTE Calculated or derived based from CRSP NASDAQ Health Services Center for Research in Security Prices CRSP Graduate

Copyright Zacks investment Research inc 2009 Used with permission All rights reserved

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jut Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
1/25/08 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008
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Use of Proceeds from Sales of Registered Securities

On January 30 2008 we closed an initial public offering of our common stock consisting of 5905000

shares of common stock Of these shares 3300000 were newly issued shares sold by us and 2605000 were

existing shares sold by the selling stockholders including 705000 shares pursuant to an exercise by the

underwriters of their over-allotment option The offering was effected pursuant to Registration Statement on

Form S-i File No 333-145850 which the Commission declared effective on January 24 2008 Credit Suisse

and Jefferies Company acted as lead underwriters

The public offering price was $16.00 per share and $94.5 million in the aggregate Underwriting discounts

and commissions were $1.12 per share and $6.6 million in the aggregate Proceeds after expenses to us were

$13.99 per share and $46.2 million in the aggregate Proceeds after expenses to the selling stockholders were

$14.88 per share and $38.8 million in the aggregate

On July 21 2008 we closed follow-on public offering for the sale of 4025000 shares of our common

stock Of these shares 1135231 shares were newly issued shares sold by us and 2889769 were shares sold by

existing stockholders including 525000 shares pursuant to an exercise by the underwriters of their over-

allotment option The offering was effected pursuant to Registration Statement on Form 5-1 File

No 333-15 1722 which the Commission declared effective on July 16 2008 Credit Suisse and Jefferies

Company acted as lead underwriters

The follow-on public offering price was $18.50 per share and $74.5 million in the aggregate Underwriting

discounts and commissions were $1.01 75 per share and $4.1 million in the aggregate Proceeds after
expenses to

us were $16.72 per share and $19.0 million in the aggregate Proceeds after
expenses to the selling stockholders

were 17.4825 per share and $50.5 million in the aggregate

We did not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares by selling stockholders or on any exercise of

the underwriters over-allotment option The net proceeds received by us in the initial public offering were $46.2

million and in the follow-on offering were $19.0 million as follows

Follow-On

Initial Public Public

Offering Offering

Aggregate offering proceeds to the Company $52800000 $21002000

Underwriting discounts and commissions 3696000 1155000

Offering expenses 2940000 865000

Net proceeds to the Company $46164000 $18982000

We used the net proceeds of the initial public offering to repay $14.1 million of our debt outstanding under

our revolving credit facility $11.1 million of which was outstanding on December 31 2007 and intend to use

the balance from the initial public offering and follow-on offering for general corporate purposes including the

acquisition of physician practices and working capital

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Participation Plans

Information required by this item with respect to our equity compensation plans will be contained in our

definitive proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission and is hereby incorporated by reference

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

None
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

We derived the following selected consolidated financial data for the five
years ended December 31 2008 from

our audited consolidated financial statements You should read the data in conjunction with Item Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations our consolidated financial statements

related notes and other financial information included herein Historical results of operations and financial position are

not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for future periods

Year Ended December 31

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data
Net revenue

Operating expenses
Cost of servicesphysician practice salaries benefits and

other

General and administrative

Litigation loss and other claims12
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Income from operations

Investment income

Interest expense
Loss on fair value of preferred stock warrant liabilities3

Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle

Income tax provision benefit4

Net income loss before cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Net income loss

Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock3
Income allocable to preferred stockholders

Per share data

Net income loss per share attributable to common stockholders

historical5

Basic

Diluted

Net income loss per share attributable to common stockholders

pro forma6
Basic

Diluted

Other Operating Data

Number of patient encounters in thousands

Hospitalists at end of the year

Other Financial Information

Net cash provided by used in operating activities

Net cash used in provided by investing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Total debt including current portion of long-term debt

Redeemable convertible preferred stock

Total stockholders deficit equity

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

dollars in thousands except for per share data

91668 $110883 $148098 $190002 $251179

62660 78966 109332 136960 181850
24351 27587 32330 37874 44701

3025 1377

781 671 1098 1396 2146

87792 110249 144137 176230 228697

3876 634 3961 13772 22482
161 342 233 397 604

115 309 1313 1691 868
90 690 8781

3922 577 2191 3.697 22218
283 4009 413 4.564 8664

867 13554

229
696

1096 12858

0.02 0.64 0.88

0.01 0.64 0.87

0.36 0.36 0.17 0.08 0.89

0.35 0.35 0.16 0.08 0.88

1065 1302 1747 2153 2790
292 421 432 546 659

9378 1415 4768 1442 14368

83 18931 754 13729 31460
299 8758 3239 13317 47510

9594 8758 775 1030 30418

15479 6721 5946 6976 37394

39613 63187 76029 97376 162691

1000 1458 14451 26822 8839

43231 42731 43.002

16416 12796 11014 43017 122947

3639 4586 1778

941

3639 3645 1.778

248 271
3624 3397 1507

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 15

867 13554
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In 2005 we recorded $3.0 million as litigation loss related to judgment resulting from an action brought

by former non-physician independent contractor In December 2007 the judgment and accrued interest

were paid in full

During 2006 we settled professional liability claim in excess of our insurance policy limit We recorded

the excess loss at the net present value of $1.3 million of which we paid $0.8 million during 2006 and the

balance was paid in 2007 We also recorded additional legal fees related to the appeal of the judgment in

connection with the action brought by former non-physician independent contractor in 2005

On October 29 2007 our certificate of incorporation was amended to remove the redemption feature of our

preferred stock On such date our redeemable convertible preferred stock was no longer redeemable and the

warrants to purchase such stock were reclassified to permanent equity Upon completion of our initial public

offering warrants held by our preferred stockholders were automatically converted into 609197 shares of

our common stock in cashless exchange using the treasury stock method and the remaining warrants

exercisable into 86458 common shares were classified as permanent equity All remaining warrants were

exercised as of October 2008

Prior to 2005 we placed full valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets DTA to reduce the DTA to

the amount that we believed more than likely than not to be realized During 2005 the valuation allowance

primarily related to net operating losses was partially reversed based on historical earnings and expected

future income from operations adequate to recognize significant portion of the DTA During 2006 the

remaining valuation allowance for consolidated entities that file consolidated tax returns was reversed for

the same reasons as for 2005

All per share data has been adjusted to reflect 1-for-6.4 reverse stock split which was completed in January

2008

Pro forma earnings per share data assumes the conversion of preferred shares to common stock on the first

day of such period at ratio of 6.41 as well as cashless exchange of warrants held by our preferred

stockholders using the treasury stock method

37



ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion highlights the principal factors that have affected our financial condition and

results of operations as well as our liquidity and capital resources for the periods described This discussion

should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes included in this

Report This discussion containsforwa rd-looking statements that are subject to known and unknown risks Actual

results and the tining of events may differ significantly from those expressed or implied in such forward-looking

statements due to number offactors including those set forth in the section entitled Risk Factors and

elsewhere in this Report The operating results for the periods presented were not significantly affected by

inflation

Company Overview and Recent Developments

We axe leading provider of hospitalist services in the United States Hospitalist medicine is organized

around inpatient care primarily delivered in hospitals and is focused on providing managing and coordinating

the care of hospitalized patients We believe we are the largest dedicated hospitalist company in the United States

based on revenues patient encounters and number of affiliated hospitalists As of December 2008 either

through our wholly-owned subsidiaries or our affiliated professional organizations we employ or affiliate with

659 hospitalists who provide hospitalist services at over 445 hospitals and medical facilities in eighteen states

We have had more than 6.6 million patient encounters since the beginning of 2006 Our early entry into the

emerging hospitalist industry has permitted us to establish reputation and leadership position that we believe is

closely identified with hospitalist medicine

We began operating our first hospitalist practice in 1998 and have increased the number of our practice

groups to over 170 Since the beginning of 2006 we have acquired twenty four practice groups and successfully

integrated them into IPC and onto IPCLink our proprietary technology-based management system Our

affiliated hospitalists are primarily full-time employees of our wholly-owned subsidiaries or our affiliated

professional organizations and we also contract with over 440 other physicians and non-physician providers

who provide episodic care as needed

Initial Public Offering and Follow-On Public Offering

On January 30 2008 we completed our initial public offering IPO for the sale of 5905000 shares of our

common stock at price of $16.00 per
share Of these shares 3300000 were newly issued shares sold by us and

2605000 were shares sold by existing stockholders We received net proceeds of $46164000 after deducting

underwriting discounts and commissions of $3696000 and other fees and expenses of $2940000 Upon

completion of our IPO all of our preferred stock and majority of our warrants converted to common stock

Immediately after the offering and including the conversion of the preferred stock and warrants there were

14844934 shares of our common stock outstanding

On July 21 200 we cdosedafoUuw-on public offering for the sale of 4025000 shares of our common
stock at price of $18.50 per share Of these shares 1135231 shares were newly issued shares sold by us and

2889769 were shares sold by certain of our existing stockholders We received net proceeds of $18982000
after deducting underwriters discounts and commissions of $1155000 and fees and expenses of $865000

Immediately after the offering there were 16017237 shares of our common stock outstanding

Acquisitions

During the year ended December 31 2008 we acquired the assets of ten hospitalist physician practices for

total initial consideration of $20658000 In connection with these acquisitions we recorded initial goodwill and

related transaction costs of $17693000 furniture and equipment of $118000 and other identifiable intangible

assets of $2847000 consisting of physician payor and hospital agreements
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Key Performance Indicators

We manage our business by monitoring certain key performance indicators that impact our revenue and

profitability The most important key performance indicators for our business are

Patient encountersbillable encounters generated by our affiliated hospitalists Typically we have one

billable encounter per patient per day although our affiliated hospitalists may have several interactions

with patient during twenty-four hour period

Revenue per encounternet revenue from patient billings divided by patient encounters

Average encounters per hospitalist per daythe number of patient encounters for day divided by the

number of hospitalists adjusted for full or part-time status measured for the same period We use this

metric to monitor our affiliated hospitalists productivity

Geographic Coverage and Revenue

During 2006 2007 and 2008 approximately 74% 71% and 67% respectively of our net revenue was

generated by operations in five states Arizona Florida Michigan Missouri and Texas Over those same periods

our operations in Texas accounted for approximately 25% 27% and 26% of our net revenue Although we

continue to seek to diversify the geographic scope of our operations primarily through acquisitions of physician

group practices or by recruiting new hospitalists or entering into new hospital contracts we may not be able to

successfully implement or realize the expected benefits of any of these initiatives Adverse changes or conditions

affecting states in which our operations are concentrated such as healthcare reforms changes in laws and

regulations reduced Medicaid reimbursements or government investigations may have material adverse effect

on our business financial condition and results of operations

We generate approximately 95% of our net revenue primarily from billings to third-party payors such as

Medicare Medicaid managed care organizations and insurance companies We generate the remaining 5% of

our net revenue from hospitals and other inpatient facilities for organizing and managing hospitalist programs or

providing coverage for patients admitted from the emergency department who otherwise have no assigned

admitting physician

Our affiliated hospitalists generally document and submit billing codes daily through the use of JPC-Link

IPCLink captures all our patient demographic and clinical information for billing and submits this data

electronically after series of automated edits and manual review of any exceptions Our automated edit

procedures follow specific business rules to correct billing errors We utilize sophisticated tracking and

monitoring system to obtain receipt of appropriate reimbursement from our payors and identify billing issues and

trends early in the reimbursement process Our monitoring system is able to identify when we are reimbursed less

than what we are contracted to receive and report when we have not received appropriate payment or other issues

have developed Based on the information from our monitoring system our collection department contacts third

party payors to resolve billing issues and to expedite our collections If we have contractual relationship with

the payor we pursue the collection until the issue is resolved If we are unable to collect from third-party payors

and we do not have contractual relationship with the payor we bill the patient for the unpaid balance We use

outside service organizations to invoice and collect co-payments and/or deductibles from insured patients and

discounted fees from uninsured or self-pay patients After 120 days of internal collection efforts we write off

the unpaid accounts and send them to an outside collection agency

We detennine our net revenue from patient billings based on our estimate of collections from payors Our

fee schedule is the same for all parties regardless of geography or party responsible for paying the bill for our

services We are reimbursed by Medicare and Medicaid at government established rates by managed care and

insurance organizations at contracted rates or other discounted rates and have various arrangements with other

third-party insurers In addition patients may be personally responsible for deductible or co-payment under

their third-party payor coverage We may provide discounted or free services to self-pay patients who require
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hospital admission when we are providing admission coverage for emergency departments if our collection

attempts are unsuccessful Due to the uncertainty regarding collectibility of charges associated with services we

provide to uninsured patients and patients with co-pay or deductible balances our net revenue recognition for

these patients is based on our expected cash collections

With respect to our revenue generated from billings to third-party payors the table below summarizes our

approximate payor mix as percentage of patient encounters for the periods indicated

Year Ended December 31

2006 2007 2008

Medicare 46% 46% 45%

Medicaid 6% 5% 6%
Other third parties 39% 39% 42%

Self-pay patients 9% 10% 7%

100% 100% 100%

The increase in the percentage of our self-pay patient encounters from the beginning of 2006 to the end of

2007 reflects the increase in our business related to coverage of emergency departments in hospitals The

decrease from 2007 to 2008 reflects better identification of sources of reimbursement for patient encounters and

reduction in coverage of emergency departments in certain cases The percentage of our net revenue related to

self-pay patients is significantly smaller percentage of our net revenues as much of these services are

uncompensated

Seasonality and Quarterly Fluctuations

We have historically experienced and expect to continue to experience quarterly fluctuations in net revenue

and income from operations Absent the impact and timing of acquisitions our net revenue has historically been

higher in the first and fourth quarters of the year primarily due to the following factors

the number of physicians we have on staff during the quarter which may fluctuate based upon the

timing of hires due to the end of the academic year for graduating resident physicians the schedule of

the Internal Medicine Board exams and terminations in our existing practices and

fluctuations in patient encounters which are impacted by hospital census which can be volatile and

physician productivity and often reflect seasonality due to the higher occurrence of illnesses such as flu

and pneumonia in patient populations in the first quarter

We have significant fixed operating costs including physician practice salaries and benefits and as result

are highly dependent on patient encounters and the productivity of our hospitalists to sustain profitability

Additionally quarterly results may be affected by the timing of acquisitions and the hiring and termination of our

affiliated hospitalists

Factors Affecting Operating Results

Rate Changes by Government Sponsored Programs

The Medicare program reimburses for our services based upon the rates in its Physician Fee Schedule and

each year the Medicare program updates the Physician Fee Schedule reimbursement rates based on formula

approved by Congress in the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 Many private payors use the Medicare fee schedule

to determine their own reimbursement rates In November 2008 the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services

released the Medicare Physician Fee Schedule which Medicare projected would increase the overall physician

reimbursement rates by 1.1 effective January 2009 However the rate change resulted in an estimated

overall 4.6% weighted average increase in the rates for the Medicare codes we use and an estimated overall 2.2%

increase in our net patient revenue per encounter
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Professional Liability Rates

Medical malpractice insurance premium rates are affected by variety of factors both internal including our

own loss experience and the associated defense costs and external such as medical malpractice loss experience

for internal medicine physicians which varies greatly across different regions Other factors include varying state

laws covering tort reform the local climate for large jury awards the rate of investment income and reinsurance

costs all of which can result in wide variations in premium rates not only from region to region but also from

year to year Although our malpractice premium rates have remained relatively stable over the last three years

the factors discussed above could lead to variations in future costs

Principles of Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc and its

wholly owned subsidiaries and its affiliated professional organizations which are managed under long-term

management agreements These management agreements have an initial term of 20 years and are automatically

renewable for successive 10-year periods unless terminated by either party for cause Based on the provisions of

the agreements we have determined that our affiliated professional organizations are variable interest entities

and that we are the primary beneficiary as defined in Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
Interpretation No 46 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities an Interpretation of ARB No 51 Revised

FIN 46R Consequently we consolidate the revenue and expenses of the affiliated professional organizations

from the date of execution of the agreements

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions relating to

the reporting of results of operations financial condition and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities

at the date of the financial statements Actual results may differ from those estimates under different assumptions

or conditions The following are our most critical accounting estimates which are those that require

managements most difficult subjective and complex judgments requiring the need to make estimates about the

effect of matters that are inherently uncertain and may change in subsequent periods

The following discussion is not intended to represent comprehensive list of our accounting estimates For

detailed discussion of the application of these and other accounting policies see Note to our audited

consolidated financial statements included in this Report

Revenues

Net revenue primarily consists of fees for medical services provided by our affiliated hospitalists under

fee-for-service and other professional fee arrangements with various payors including Medicare Medicaid

managed care organizations insurance companies and hospitals

We report net revenue in the period in which services are provided at rates that reflect the amount expected

to be collected Although we have standard billing rates in our system we do not use these standard billing rates

for recording the amount of revenue we expect to collect Some providers of medical services record revenue at

their standard billing rates with an allowance for contractual discounts The process of estimating the ultimate

amount of revenue to be collected is highly subjective and requires the application of judgment based on many

factors including contractual reimbursement rates the payor mix age of receivables historical cash collection

experience and other relevant information Revenue related to patient responsibility accounts including both

deductible and co-pays for insured patients and discounted fees for uninsured patients is recorded at amounts

reasonably assured of collection

The evaluation of these factors as well as the interpretation of governmental regulations and private

insurance contract provisions involves complex subjective judgments As result of the inherent complexity of

these calculations our actual revenues and net income and our accounts receivable could vary from the amounts

reported
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable primarily consists of amounts due from third-party payors including governmental

programs such as Medicare and Medicaid managed care organizations insurance companies hospitals and

amounts due from patients Accounts receivable are stated at the amount expected to be collected net of reserves

for amounts estimated by management to be uncollectible We write off uncollectible accounts receivable after

reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted We also regularly analyze the ultimate collectibility of

accounts receivable after certain stages of the collection cycle using look-back analysis to determine the

amount of receivables subsequently collected and adjustments are recorded when necessary

The following table summarizes our accounts receivable aging by payor as of December 31 2008 and

December 31 2007 dollars in thousands

As of December 312008

_________ ________ ______
61-90 91-120

539 338

461 374

2613 1979

_______ _____
262 167

_______ ______
$3875 $2858

______

As of December 31 2007

_________ ________
61-90 91-120 121 Total

$1846 925 $1270 $13684

347 286 704 2657

2028 1196 2715 17726

_______ _____
445 348 553 2361

_______ _____
$4666 $2755 $5242 36428

5614
7552

1128

cQ iQ4

Days Aged 0-30

7752

1422

11867

308

$21349

31-60

856

591

4206

269

$5922

121

509

1042

3793

143

$5487

Payor

Medicarel

Medicaid

Other third parties

Private pay patients

Aged patient accounts receivable

Less Unposted cash2

Add Unbilled revenue3
Add Hospital contract other

receivables

Accounts receivable net4

Payor

Medicare1

Medicaid

Other third parties

Private pay patients

Aged patient accounts receivable

Less Unposted cash2
Add Unbilled revenue3
Add Hospital contract other

receivables

Accounts receivable net4

Total

9994

3890

24458

1149

39491

6540
8967

2556

$44474

Days Aged 0-30

7323

892

8542

537

$17294

31-60

$2320

428

3245

478

$6471

The decrease in our accounts receivable from Medicare in 2008 compared to 2007 of $3.7 million reflects

process improvements implemented in 2008 to enroll newly hired hospitalists into Medicare in more

timely manner

Unposted cash represents cash receipts which have been deposited into our bank accounts but have not been

posted to the aged accounts in our billing system

Unbilled revenue represents the net revenue for hospitalist services that have been provided to patients but

for which bill has not yet been processed by us

The increase in our accounts receivable in 2008 compared to 2007 of $5.0 million was result of our

revenue growth in 2008 Our days sales outstanding DSO decreased to 60 at December 31 2008 from 69

at December 31 2007 We calculate DSO using three month rolling average of net revenues
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We record acquired assets and liabilities at their respective fair values under the purchase method of

accounting Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of the net assets acquired Other intangible

assets primarily represent the fair value of hospital service contract agreements and non-compete agreements

acquired in connection with certain asset purchase agreements Under Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other intangible Assets goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible

assets are not amortized Separable identified intangible assets that have finite lives are amortized over their

useful lives

We review and evaluate goodwill and other intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis as well as

when events or changes in business conditions suggest potential impairment at the entity level since we operate

in only one line of business The testing for impairment is completed using two step test The first step

compares the fair value of our Company with its carrying amount including goodwill If the carrying amount of

the entity exceeds its fair value second step is performed to determine the amount of any impairment loss

During 2006 2007 and 2008 no impairment indicators were present and no impairment was recognized

Claims Liability and Professional Liability Reserves

We are self-insured up to certain limits for costs associated with professional liability claims We establish

reserves for the self-insurance retention Our malpractice policies are on claims-made basis consequently we

establish reserves on an undiscounted basis for estimates of the loss that we will ultimately incur on claims that

have been incurred but not reported These reserves are based upon actuarial loss projections which are updated

semi-annually The actuarial loss projections consider number of factors including historical claim payment

patterns and changes in case reserves and the assumed rate of increase in healthcare costs Historical experience

and recent trends in the historical experience are the most significant factors in the determination of these

reserves We believe the use of actuarial methods to account for these reserves provides consistent and effective

way to measure these subjective accruals However given the magnitude of the claims involved and the length of

time until the ultimate cost is known the use of any estimation technique in this area is inherently sensitive and

subject to change when actual paid claims information becomes known Accordingly our recorded reserves

could differ from our ultimate costs related to these claims due to changes in our incident reporting claims

payment and settlement practices or claims reserve practices as well as differences between assumed and future

cost increases

Preferred Stock Warrants

We applied the provisions of FASB Staff Position FSP No 150-5 Issuers Accounting under FASB

Statement No 150 for Freestanding Warrants and Other Similar Instruments on Shares That Are Redeemable

FSP 150-5 an interpretation of SFAS No 150 Accounting for Certain Financial instruments with

Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity to our preferred stock warrants and accordingly recorded these

preferred stock warrants at fair value Pursuant to FSP 150-5 freestanding warrants for shares that are either

puttable or warrants for shares that are redeemable are classified as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet at

fair value and changes in the fair value during the period are recorded as component of other income

expense

We applied the transition provisions of FSP 150-5 beginning July 2005 and recorded cumulative effect

adjustment as of that date and in subsequent periods we recorded the change in fair value of the warrants as

component of our other income expense and recorded accretion of our preferred stock as reduction to net

income available to our common stockholders

On October 29 2007 we amended our Certificate of Incorporation to remove the redemption feature of our

preferred stock At that date the warrants were reclassified in our balance sheet to equity At the completion of

our initial public offering in January 2008 warrants held by our preferred stockholders automatically converted
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into 609197 shares of our common stock in cashless exercise using the treasury stock method Warrants held

by certain lender also converted at the completion of our initial public offering into 32143 shares of common
stock in cashless exchange using the treasury method All remaining warrants were exercised in cashless

exchange using the treasury method into 31726 shares of common stock as of October 2008

Recently Adopted and New Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measures SFAS 157 SFAS 157

addresses how companies should measure fair value when they are required to use fair value measure for

recognition and disclosure purposes under generally accepted accounting principles SFAS 157 requires the fair

value of an asset or liability to be based on market based measure which will reflect the credit risk of the

company SFAS 157 also requires expanded disclosure requirements which will include the methods and

assumptions used to measure fair value and the effect of fair value measures on earnings SFAS 157 is effective

for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2007 In February 2008 the FASB deferred the effective date of

SFAS 157 for certain nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities to fiscal years beginning after November 15

2008 and interim periods within those fiscal
years We adopted SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities on

January 2008 The adoption of SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities did not have material impact on

our financial position results of operations or cash flows We adopted SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and

nonfinancial liabilities on January 2009 We are currently assessing the effect of SFAS 157 on nonfinancial

assets and nonfinancial liabilities on our financial statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and

Financial LiabilitiesIncluding an amendment of FASB Statement No 115 SFAS 159 SFAS 159 permits

entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value Unrealized gains

and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected will be recognized in earnings at each

subsequent reporting date SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2007 We

adopted SFAS 159 on January 2008 We did not elect to record at fair value any of our financial assets or

liabilities that were not previously recorded at fair value under other accounting literature

New Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141R Business Combinations SFAS 141R which

replaces SFAS No 141 SFAS 14 1R introduces significant changes in the accounting for and reporting of

business acquisitions SFAS 14 1R changes how business acquisitions are accounted for and will impact

financial statements at the acquisition date and in subsequent periods Pursuant to SFAS 14 1R an acquiring

entity will be required to recognize all of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in transaction at the

acquisition-date fair value with limited exceptions and all transaction related costs will be expensed In addition

SFAS 141R will have an impact on the goodwill impairment test associated with acquisitions The provisions

of SFAS 14 1R are effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the

beginningof the first annual reporting period bgigOn Offº Dºººthber 15 200.Thº impact that the

adoption of SFAS 141R will have on our consolidated financial statements will depend on the nature terms and

size of our business combinations that occur after the effective date
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Results of Operations and Operating Data

Consolidated Results

The following table sets forth operating data and selected consolidated statements of operations information

stated as percentage of net revenue

Year Ended December 31

2006 2007 2008

Operating datapatient encounters 1747000 2153000 2790000

Net revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Operating expenses

Cost of services-physician practice salaries benefits and other 73.8% 72.1% 72.4%

General and administrative 1.8% 19.9% 17.8%

Litigation loss and other claims 0.9% 0.0% 0.0%

Depreciation and amortization 0.8% 0.7% 0.8%

Total operating expenses 97.3% 92.7% 1.0%

Income from operations 2.7% 7.3% 9.0%

Investment income 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%

Interest expense 0.9% 0.9% 0.4%
Loss on fair value of preferred stock warrant liabilities 0.5% 4.6% 0.0%

Income before income taxes 1.5% 2.0% 8.8%

Income tax provision 0.3% 2.4% 3.4%

Net income loss 1.2% 0.4% 5.4%

Year ended December 31 2008 compared to year ended December 31 2007

Net revenue for the year ended December 31 2008 was $251.2 million an increase of $61.2 million

or 32.2% from $190.0 million for the
year ended December 31 2007 Of this $61.2 million increase $36.3

million or 59.3% was attributable to same-market area growth and $24.9 million was attributable to revenue

generated from completed acquisitions during 2008 and 2007 Same-market areas are those geographic areas in

which we have had operations for the entire current period and the entire comparable prior period Because

in-market area acquisitions are often small practice groups which become subsumed within existing practice

groups and are managed by our existing regional management staff we consider these as part of our same-market

area growth Same-market area net revenue increased 20.1% primarily as the result of 16.6% increase in patient

encounters Overall net revenue per encounter increased by 2.1% primarily as result of an increase in revenue

from hospital contracts and increases in net patient revenue per encounter primarily as result of improvements

in our billing processes and collections

Physician practice salaries benefits and other expenses for the year ended December 31 2008 were $181.9

million or 2.4% of net revenue compared to $137.0 million or 72.1% of net revenue for the year ended

December 31 2007 These costs increased by $44.9 million or 32.8% Same-market area physician costs

increased total of $26.6 million or 20.3% of which $6.4 million was primarily the result of increased salaries

practice bonuses and other costs related to an increase in existing hospitalists productivity and $20.2 million was

from costs of net new hires or acquired physicians in the same-market area practices The remaining increased

cost of $18.4 million is attributable to physician costs associated with new market acquisitions Physician costs as

percentage of net revenue increased slightly as result of lower physician productivity in new practices under

development

General and administrative expenses increased $6.8 million or 17.9% to $44.7 million or 17.8% of net

revenue for the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to $37.9 million or 19.9% of net revenue for the

year ended December 31 2007 The increase is the result of combination of increased costs as public
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company increased stock compensation expense and increased costs to support the continuing growth of our

operations and our acquisitions including the addition of new regional offices to support our geographic

expansion General and administrative expenses decreased as percentage of net revenue as we continue to

leverage these costs over larger revenue base

Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $0.7 million to $2.1 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 as compared to $1.4 million for the year ended December 31 2007 This increase is

attributable to depreciation related to added computer hardware and software and to amortization of identifiable

intangible assets related to our acquisitions

Income from operations increased $8.7 million or 63.0% to $22.5 million for the
year ended December 31

2008 as compared to $13.8 million for the same period in the prior year Our operating margin increased to 9.0%

for the year ended December 31 2008 from 7.3% for the year ended December 31 2007 The increase in

operating margin percentage is directly attributable to the reduction in general and administrative
expenses as

percentage of net revenue

We recorded interest expense of $0.9 million for the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to interest

expense of $1.7 million for the year ended December 31 2007 The decrease in interest expense is primarily

attributable to the pay-off of balances outstanding on our revolving credit agreement with proceeds from our

initial public offering in January 2008

Our effective tax rate for the year ended December 31 2008 was 39.0% compared to 42.0% for the year

ended December 31 2007 excluding the nondeductible loss of $8.8 million we incurred related to the change in

the fair value preferred stock warrant liabilities in 2007 benefit from utilization of net operating losses that

were subject to valuation allowance from separate tax filing entities and rate change benefit applicable to

federal deferred tax assets The 2008 effective tax rate includes state enterprise zone tax credit which reduced

the 2008 state effective tax rate by approximately 2.0% The effective tax rate differs from the statutory U.S

federal rate of 35.0% due primarily to state income taxes Without regard to tax legislation that may be passed in

2009 we expect our 2009 effective income tax rate to be approximately 40.0%

Net income increased to $13.6 million for the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to net loss of

$0.9 million for the
year ended December 31 2007 and our net income margin increased to 5.4% from negative

0.5% for the same period in the prior year During 2007 we recorded loss of $8.8 million related to the change

in the fair value of preferred stock warrant liabilities Excluding such loss in 2007 our net income margin was

4.2% The net income margin increase to 5.4% is primarily the result of leveraging our general and

administrative
expenses over larger revenue base as we grow our practices and acquire new practices

Year ended December 31 2007 compared to year ended December 31 2006

Net revenue for the year ended December 31 2007 was $190.0 million an increase of 541.9 million

or 28.3% from $148 million for theyar ended December 31 2006 Oiihj$4L9mifljonjucrease

$2 8.4 million or 67.8% was attributable to same-market area growth and $13.5 million was attributable to

revenue generated from completed acquisitions and new geographical areas opened during 2006 and 2007 The

change in same-market area net revenue was primarily the result of increased revenue of approximately $20.6

million from 15.2% increase in patient encounters from both existing hospitalists and new hospitalists either

hired or added through an in-market area group acquisition and increased revenue of approximately $7.8

million from 5.5% increase in revenue per encounter of which approximately 4.0% was the result of an increase

in Medicare reimbursement rates for the billing codes applicable to our services effective January 2007 and the

remaining 1.5% was the result of changes in
payor

and acuity mix
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Physician practice salaries benefits and other expenses for the year ended December 31 2007 were

$137.0 million or 72.1% of net revenue compared to $109.3 million or 73.8% of net revenue for the year
ended

December 31 2006 These costs increased by $27.6 million or 25.3% Same-market area physician costs

increased total of $17.6 million of which $13.9 million was primarily the result of increased salaries and

bonuses from revised hospitalist productivity incentive plan which was effective July 2006 and an increase

in hospitalist productivity and $7.7 million from costs of net new hires in the same-market area practices The

increased physician costs associated with new market openings and new market acquisitions during 2006 and

2007 were $10.0 million The decrease in physician cost as percent of revenue was the result of higher

productivity and revenue per physician In mid-2006 we increased our base salaries for our hospitalists and

instituted revised physician incentive plan based on the direct profitability of the individual practices and the

productivity of each hospitalist within the practice We believe that these changes contributed to the increase in

hospitalist productivity and the overall increase in patient encounters

General and administrative expenses include all salaries benefits supplies and operating expenses not

specifically related to the day-to-day operations of our physician group practices including billing and

collections functions and our regional and market-area administrative offices General and administrative

expenses increased $5.6 million or 17.1% to $37.9 million or 19.9% of revenue for the year ended

December 31 2007 as compared to $32.3 million or 21.8% of revenue for the year ended December 31 2006

This $5.6 million increase is primarily attributable to increased salaries benefits corporate and regional

incentive compensation technology costs and increased travel to support the continuing growth of our operations

and our acquisitions In addition we incurred increased costs as we prepared to become public company The

decline in general and administrative expenses as percentage of revenue is due to the effective management of

such expenses as we grew our operations in 2007

Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $0.3 million or 27.2% to $1.4 million for the year

ended December 31 2007 as compared to $1.1 million for the year ended December 31 2006 This increase is

primarily attributable to amortization of identifiable intangible assets related to our acquisitions

Income from operations increased $9.8 million or 247.7% to $13.8 million as compared to $4.0 million for

the same period of the prior year Our operating margin increased to 7.3% for the year
ended December 31 2007

from 2.7% for the year ended December 31 2006 The increase in operating margin is directly attributable to the

decrease in physician practice costs as percentage of revenue and the reduction in general and administrative

expenses as percentage of revenue

We recorded interest expense of $1.7 million for the year ended December 31 2007 as compared to interest

expense of $1.3 million for the year ended December 31 2006 The increase in interest expense is primarily due

to increased borrowings under our revolving credit facility to fund acquisitions

Our effective income tax rate for the year ended December 31 2007 was 123.4% compared to 18.8% for the

year ended December 31 2006 The substantial rate increase in 2007 was primarily due to the $8.8 million

nondeductible loss we incurred on the change in the fair value of preferred stock warrant liabilities in 2007 as

compared to $0.7 million recorded in 2006 Excluding this nondeductible loss our effective tax rate would have

been 36.6% for the
year

ended December 31 2007 and 14.3% for 2006 The adjusted 2006 effective tax rate

includes benefit from release of the valuation allowance The 2007 effective tax rate excluding the

nondeductible loss noted above is lower than we expect in future periods due to 2007 benefit recognized for the

reduction of FIN 48 liability the benefit from utilization of net operating losses subject to valuation

allowance from separate tax filing entities and rate change applicable to federal deferred tax assets Our

effective tax rate excluding the items noted above was approximately 42% for the year
ended December 31 2007

and 45% for the year ended December 31 2006

Net income decreased to net loss of $0.9 million for the year ended December 31 2007 as compared to

$1.8 million net income for the year ended December 31 2006 and our net income margin decreased to

negative 0.4% from positive 1.2% for the same period The net income margin decrease is primarily the result
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of the recognition of the loss on fair value of the warrant liability offset by the reduction in physician practice

costs as percent of revenue and leveraging our general and administrative expenses over larger revenue base

as we grow our practices and acquire new practices

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In January 2008 we completed our initial public offering which resulted in net proceeds of $46.2 million to

us after payment of underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses We used part of the proceeds

to pay off the outstanding balance of $14.1 million under the revolving portion of our credit agreement

On July 21 2008 we closed follow-on public offering for the sale of 4025000 shares of our common
stock at price of $18.50 per share Of these shares 1135231 shares were newly issued shares sold by us and

2889769 were shares sold by existing stockholders We received net proceeds of $18982000 after deducting

underwriters discounts and commissions of $1155000 and fees and expenses of $865000 Immediately after

the offering there were 16017237 shares of our common stock outstanding At December 31 2008 we had

outstanding borrowings of $8.8 million on our term loan and other financings letter of credit of $0.1 million

outstanding under our $30.0 million revolving credit agreement and $37.4 million in cash and cash equivalents

Year ended December 31 2008 compared to year ended December 31 2007

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31 2008 was $14.4 million

compared to $1.4 million provided by operations for the same period of 2007 Operating cash flow from changes

in working capital for the year ended December 31 2008 increased by $7.2 million Accounts receivable

increased by $5.0 million during the year ended December 31 2008 However on days sales outstanding

DSO basis which we use to measure the effectiveness of our collections DSO has decreased to 60 DSO as of

December 31 2008 compared to 69 DSO as of December 31 2007 We calculate our DSO using three-month

rolling average of net revenues Prepaid expenses decreased by $2.1 million for the 2008 period compared to an

increase of $3.2 million for the 2007 period The decrease was primarily the result of funding of $1.8 million in

prepaid IPO costs from our public stock offering in January 2008

Net cash used in investing activities was $31.5 million for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to

net cash used in investing activities of $13.7 million for the same period in 2007 Cash of $29.9 million was used

in 2008 for acquisitions of physician practices and earn-out payments on 2008 and prior years acquisitions

compared to $15.3 million in the same period of the prior year The remainder of cash used in investing activities

was for purchases of computer hardware and software and office furnishings

For the year ended December 31 2008 net cash provided by financing activities was $47.5 million

compared to $13.3 million for the year ended December 31 2007 During 2008 we completed our initial public

offering and follow-on offering which resulted in aggregate net proceeds of $65.2 million to us after payment
of underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses These proceeds were offset by debt payments
of $18.0 million of which $14.1 million paid off the outstanding balance under the revolving portion of our

credit agreement shortly after our initial public offering in January 2008

Year ended December 31 2007 compared to year ended December 31 2006

Net cash provided by operating activities was $1.4 million for 2007 compared to $4.8 million used in

operations for 2006 Operating cash flow from changes in working capital for the year ended December 31 2007

increased by $0.9 million primarily reflecting improved collections on accounts receivable increase in accrued

compensation because of the timing of the year-end payroll both offset by $3.6 million payment in December

2007 for lawsuit During 2007 we reduced the time to collect our accounts receivable as our new billing system
which was installed in 2006 was fully implemented Our DSO declined from 72 at December 31 2006 to 69 at

December 31 2007 Increases in malpractice self insurance accounts payable and patient refunds and the

increase in accrued compensation are all primarily related to the increase in the number of physicians and patient

volumes between the periods
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Net cash used in investing activities was $13.7 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to

net cash provided by investing activities of $0.8 million for the same period in 2006 Substantially all of the cash

used in 2007 related to acquisitions of physician practices or earn-out payments on prior acquisitions partially

offset by the release of $2.5 million restriction on cash in connection with our new loan agreement in October

2007 The cash provided by investing activities in 2006 related to the maturity of $5.3 million of short-term

treasury investments net of acquisitions of physician practices or earn-out payments on prior acquisitions

For the year ended December 31 2007 net cash provided by financing activities was $13.3 million

compared to $3.2 million for the year ended December 31 2006 We increased our borrowings under our

revolving credit agreement by $12.4 million to finance acquisitions and earn-out payments net of payments on

malpractice premium and equipment financing agreements

Credit Facility and Liquidity

Our Credit Facility provides revolving line of credit of $30.0 million with sublimit of $5.0 million for

the issuance of letters of credit plus term loan in an original amount of $10.0 million The Credit Facility has

maturity date of September 15 2011 We use the Credit Facility for working capital and to fund practice

acquisitions and capital expenditures Our outstanding principal balance under the term loan portion of the

Credit Facility as of December 31 2008 was $7.8 million and as of December 31 2007 was $1 1.1 million As of

December 31 2007 and 2008 we had $18.9 million and $29.9 million respectively available under the

revolving line of credit

The revolving line of credit is limited by formula based on certain multiple times the trailing twelve

months of earnings before interest depreciation amortization taxes and certain non-cash items Borrowings

under the Credit Facility bear interest at rate based on either LIBOR plus 1.5% to 2.0% or the lenders prime

rate as selected by us for each advance We pay an unused commitment fee equal to 0.25% per annum on the

difference between the revolving line capacity and the average balance outstanding during the three months We

make equal monthly installment payments which increase annually against our term loan through the maturity

date Outstanding amounts advanced to us under the revolving line of credit are repayable on or before the

maturity date

The Credit Facility is secured by all of our current and future personal and intellectual property assets

except those held subject to purchase money loans and capital leases Our outstanding principal balance under the

term loan portion of the Credit Facility as of December 31 2008 was $7.8 million and we had letter of credit of

$0.1 million outstanding under the $30.0 million revolving line of credit The facility includes various customary

financial covenants and restrictions as well as customary remedies for our lenders following an event of default

As of December 31 2008 we were in compliance with such financial covenants and restrictions

We anticipate that funds generated from operations together with our current cash on hand and funds

available under our revolving credit agreement will be sufficient to finance our working capital requirements and

fund anticipated acquisitions contingent acquisition consideration and capital expenditures
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Contractual Obligations and Reserves

The table below summarizes by maturity our significant contractual obligations and reserves including

interest as of December 31 2008

Due in Years Ending December 31

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total

Long-term debt and capital leasesl $3838 $3299 $2303 9440
Operating lease obligations 1826 1554 812 280 44 4521
Acquisition earn-out payments2 2476 2476
Medical malpractice reservesself-insured

retention3 363 508 259 76 27 189 1422

Sub-total contractual obligations 8503 5361 3374 356 71 194 17859

Medical malpractice reserveclaims-made

basis3 176 1240 2372 2416 1910 2223 10337

Total contractual obligations and

reserves $8679 $6601 $5746 $2772 $1981 $2417 $28196

Amounts include outstanding balances at December 31 2008 plus estimated interest costs assuming rates in

effect on such date varying from 6.43% to 8.5 1% In late January 2008 after our initial public offering we

paid the balance of our revolving line of credit of $14.1 million $11.1 million of which was outstanding at

December 31 2007

As of March 2009 we paid $1.0 million of additional consideration that was accrued at

December 31 2008 related to the acquisition of various hospitalist physician practices in 2007 In addition

to the initial consideration paid pursuant to certain other asset purchase agreements entered into during the

year ended December 31 2008 additional future consideration is to be paid based upon the achievement of

certain operating results of the acquired practices as of certain measurement dates These additional

payments which are not included in this table are estimated to be approximately $5.0 million and the

majority of such payments are expected to be made during 2009 with the remaining amounts to be paid in

early 2010 Such additional consideration is not contingent upon the future employment of the sellers

We are self-insured up to certain limits for costs associated with professional liability claims We establish

reserves that we expect to pay for the self-insurance retention Our malpractice policies are on claims-

made basis consequently we establish reserves on an undiscounted basis for estimates of the loss that we
will ultimately incur on claims that have been incurred but not reported These reserves and the timing of

payment of such amounts are estimated based upon actuarial loss projections which are updated semi

annually So long as we maintain third party malpractice insurance policies the claims in excess of self

insured retention will be covered by such third party policy up to the policy limits

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31 2008 we had no off-balance sheet arrangements
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ITEM 7A.QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to changes in interest rate as result of our Credit Facility At our option the interest rate

on outstanding borrowings under our Credit Facility is either LIBOR plus 1.5% to 2.0% or the base rate plus the

applicable margin as defined in the agreements The base rate is daily floating rate based on most recently

announced by our lender as its prime rate whether or not such announced rate is the lowest rate available from

our lender LIBOR is either the 30 60 90 or 180 day LIBOR Historically we have chosen not to use interest

rate derivatives to manage our exposure to changes in interest rates

We had outstanding borrowings under the term loan portion of our Credit Facility of $7.8 million at

December 31 2008 The impact of 1.0% increase on short-term interest rates would result in an increase in

interest expense of approximately $0.1 million annually and decrease in net income of approximately $0.05

million

Investments in both fixed rate and floating rate interest earning instruments carry degree of interest rate

risk Fixed rate securities may have their fair market value adversely impacted due to rise in interest rates

while floating rate securities with shorter maturities may produce less income if interest rates fall As of

December 31 2008 all of our short-term investments were invested in money market funds with less than 90-day

maturities

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements and supplementary data are as set forth in the Index to Consolidated

Financial Statements on page 52
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors

IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc the

Company as of December 31 2007 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations

stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 Our

audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the index at Item 15a These financial statements

and schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc at December 31 2007 and 2008 and the

consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2008 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the

related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as

whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31

2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 27 2009 expressed an

unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Los Angeles California

February 27 2009
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IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

Consolidated Balance Sheets

in thousands except for share data

As of December 31

2007 2008

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6976 37394
Accounts receivable net 39494 44474
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 10203 8081

Total current assets 56.673 89949
Furniture and equipment net 2189 2452
Goodwill 34754 63893
Other intangible assets net 808 2905
Deferred tax assets net 2952 3492

Total assets 97376 $162691

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4667 4664
Accrued compensation 12382 11232

Payables for practice acquisitions 292 2476
Medical malpractice and self-insurance reserves current portion 951 539

Deferred tax liabilities 45 481

Short-term debt and current portion of capital leases 7029 3471

Total current liabilities 25366 22863

Long-term debt and capital leases less current portion 19793 5368
Medical malpractice and self-insurance reserves less current portion 8900 11220

Other long-term liabilities 300 293

Total liabilities 54359 39744
Stockholders equity

Convertible preferred stock Series and $0.00 par value 64905826
shares authorized 57761235 shares issued and outstanding in 2007 liquidation

preference of $43230532 in 2007 none in 2008 57

Preferred stock $0.OOl par value 294174 and 15000000 shares authorized in 2007

and 2008 respectively none issued

Common stock $0.00 par value 87300000 and 50000000 shares authorized in

2007 and 2008 respectively 1878382 and 16068835 shares issued and

uutstaiidiiig and2OOB respectively 16

Additional paid-in capital 55605 122024

Accumulated deficit retained earnings 12647 907

Total stockholders equity 43017 122.947

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 97376 $162691

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

Consolidated Statements of Operations

dollars in thousands except for per share data

Years Ended December 31

2006 2007 2008

Net revenue $148098 $190002 $251179

Operating expenses

Cost of servicesphysician practice salaries benefits and other 109332 136960 181850

General and administrative 32330 37874 44701

Litigation loss and other claims 1377

Depreciation and amortization 1098 1396 2146

Total operating expenses 144137 176230 228697

Income from operations 3961 13772 22482

Investment income 233 397 604

Interest expense 1313 1691 868
Loss on fair value of preferred stock warrant liabilities 690 8781

Income before income taxes 2191 3697 22218

Income tax provision 413 4564 8664

Net income loss 1778 867 13554

Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock 271 229
Income allocable to preferred stockholders 1507 696

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 1096 12858

Per share data

Net income loss per share attributable to common stockholdershistorical

Basic 0.64 0.88

Diluted 0.64 0.87

Net income loss per share attributable to common stockholderspro forma

Basic 0.17 0.08 0.89

Diluted 0.16 0.08 0.88

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

dollars in thousands except for per share data

Series Series Series Series
Accumulated

Common Stock Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Preferred Stock
Additional Deficit

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Total

Balance at January 12006 1161403 248 $12549 $l2796
Issuance of common stock 124236 150 150

Repurchase of common stock 41382 97 97
Tax benefits from stock options 196 196

Stock-based compensation expense 26 26

Accretion of redeemable convertihl

preferred stock 271 271
Net income

__________ ________
1778 1778

Balance at December 31 2006 1244257 27 11042 11014
Issuance of common stock 637458 499 500

Repurchase of common stock 3333
Tax benefits from stock options 455 455

Stock based compensation expense 91 91

Reclassification of convertible

preferred stock 10318866 10 17893968 18 11139850 11 18408551 18 43173 43230
Warrant fair value 11369 11369
Adjustment to initially apply FIN 4$

see Note 509 509
Accretion of redeemable convertible

preferred stock 229 229
Net loss

__________ ___________ ___________ ___________ ___________ ________
867 867

Balance at December 31 2007 87882 10318866 10 17893968 18 11139850 11 18408551 18 55605 12647 43017
Initial public offering of common

stock net of $6636 of offering

costs 300000 46161 46.164

Conversion of preferred stock to

common stock in connection wiffi

initial public offering 9025195 10318866 10 17893968 18 11139850 11 18408551 18 48
Issuance of common stock for

warrants exercised on cashless

basis in connection with initial

public offering 641340
Follow on public offering of commn

stock net of $2020 of offering

costs 1135231 18981 18.982
Issuance of common stock 88687 58 58
Tax benefits from stock options 454 454

Stock based compensation expense 881 881

Net income
________ __________ _________ _________ _______

fl554 13.554

BalanceatDecember3l2008 16068835 $16 $122024 907 $122947

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

dollars in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2006 2007 2008

Operating activities

Net income loss 1778 867 13554

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash used in provided by

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 1098 1396 2146

Stock-based compensation expense
26 91 881

Tax liability reduction for uncertain tax positions

Deferred income taxes 33 1336 103
Revaluation of preferred stock warrant liabilities 690 8781

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 10667 7976 4980
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3243 3382 2122

Accounts payable 1211 344
Accrued compensation 912 4159 1150
Medical malpractice and self-insurance reserves 2821 1846 1908

Accrued litigation loss and other claims 573 3598

Net cash used in provided by operating activities 4768 1442 14368

Investing activities

Acquisitions of physician practices 3257 15303 29921
Sale of short-term investments net 5251

Purchase of furniture and equipment 1240 926 1539
Elimination of cash restriction by lender 2500

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 754 13729 31460

Financing activities

Proceeds from repayments of long-term debt and capital leases net 2992 12371 17986
Net proceeds from issuance of common and preferred stock 51 491 65042
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 196 455 454

Net cash provided by financing activities 3239 13317 47510

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 775 1030 30418

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 6721 5946 6976

Cash and cash equivalents end of
year 5946 6976 37394

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for

Interest 1046 2021 827

Income taxes 1485 4234 7764

Acquisitions of physician practices consisted of the following

Acquired assets

Goodwill and intangible assets 4848 13429 31987
Furniture and equipment 118

Accrued consideration 1591 1874 2184

Net cash paid for acquisitions 3257 15303 29921

Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stock 271 229

Reclassification of convertible preferred stock to equity 43231

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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IPC THE HOSPITALIST COMPANY INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31 2008

Operations and Significant Accounting Policies

Business

IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc and its subsidiaries the Company IPC we us and our is

national physician group practice company that operates and manages full-time hospitalist practices Hospitalists

are acute-care physician specialists who focus on patients hospital care from time of admission to discharge

and have no outpatient responsibilities Hospitalists practice exclusively in hospitals or other inpatient facilities

including acute sub-acute and long-term care settings The physicians are primarily full-time employees of our

subsidiaries or consolidated professional medical corporations although part-time and temporary physicians are

also employed or contracted on an as-needed basis

Reverse Stock Split and Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation

In January 2008 we completed -for-6.4 reverse stock split of our outstanding common stock The

accompanying financial statements and notes to the financial statements give retroactive effect to the reverse

stock split for all periods presented In addition the reverse stock split resulted in an adjustment in the number of

shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of our convertible preferred stock to 6.41 ratio In addition

we adopted an Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation which provides that our authorized capital

stock consists of 50 million shares of common stock $0.00 par value per share and 15 million shares of

preferred stock $0.00 par value per share

Initial Public Offering and Follow-On Public Offering

On January 30 2008 we completed our initial public offering IPO for the sale of 5905000 shares of our

common stock at price of $16.00 per share Of these shares 3300000 were newly issued shares sold by us and

2605000 were shares sold by existing stockholders We received net proceeds of $46164000 after deducting

underwriting discounts and commissions of $3696000 and other fees and expenses of $2940000 As discussed

further in Note upon completion of our IPO all of our preferred stock and majority of our warrants

converted to common stock Immediately after the offering and including the conversion of the preferred stock

and warrants there were 14844934 shares of our common stock outstanding

On July 21 2008 we closed follow-on public offering for the sale of 4025000 shares of our common
stock at price of $18.50 per share Of these shares 1135231 shares were newly issued shares sold by us and

2889769 were shares sold by certain of our existing stockholders We received net proceeds of $18982000
after deducting underwriters discounts and commissions of $1155000 and fees and expenses of $865000
Immediately after the offering there were 16017237 shares of our common stock outstanding

Principlesof Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc and its

wholly owned subsidiaries and consolidated professional medical corporations managed under long-term

management agreements the Professional Medical Corporations Some states have laws that prohibit business

entities such as IPC from practicing medicine employing physicians to practice medicine exercising control

over medical decisions by physicians also known collectively as the corporate practice of medicine or engaging

in certain arrangements such as fee-splitting with physicians In states that have these restrictions we operate by

maintaining long-term management contracts with affiliated professional organizations which are each owned

and operated by physicians and which employ or contract with additional physicians to provide hospitalist

services Under the management agreements we provide and perform all non-medical management and

administrative services including financial management information systems marketing risk management and
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IPC THE HOSPITALIST COMPANY INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

administrative support The management agreements have an initial term of 20 years and are automatically

renewable for successive 10-year periods unless terminated by either party for cause The management

agreements are not terminable by the Professional Medical Corporations except in the case of gross negligence

fraud or other illegal acts by us or bankruptcy of IPC Through the management agreements and our relationship

with the stockholders of the Professional Medical Corporations we have exclusive authority over all

non-medical decision making related to the ongoing business operations of the Professional Medical

Corporations Further our rights under the management agreements are unilaterally salable or transferable Based

on the provisions of the agreements we have determined that the professional medical corporations are variable

interest entities and that we are the primary beneficiary as defined in Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Interpretation No 46 revised December 2003 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities an

Interpretation of ARB No 51 FIN 46R and consequently we consolidate the revenue and expenses of the

Professional Medical Corporations from the date of execution of the agreements All intercompany balances and

transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Segment Reporting

We operate in regional operating structure The results of our regional operations are aggregated into

single reportable segment for purposes of presenting financial information as outlined in FASB Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 131 Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related

Information

Revenue

Net revenue consists of fees for medical services provided by our affiliated hospitalists under

fee-for-service case rate and other professional fee arrangements with various payors including Medicare

Medicaid managed care organizations insurance companies and hospitals Net revenue is reported on the

accrual basis in the period in which services are provided at rates that reflect the amount expected to be

collected The process of estimating the ultimate amount of revenue to be collected is highly subjective and

requires the application of our judgment based on many factors including contractual reimbursement rates the

payor mix age of receivables historical cash collection experience and other relevant information Revenue

related to patient responsibility accounts is recorded at amounts reasonably assured of collection which is net of

provision for uncollectible accounts During the years ended December 31 2006 2007 and 2008 we recorded

provision for uncollectible accounts of $5119000 $6649000 and $8498000 respectively We write off

uncollectible accounts receivable after reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted

During the years ended December 31 2006 2007 and 2008 approximately 52% 51% and 51%

respectively of our patient volume was from Medicare and Medicaid programs

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and

expenses at the date and for the periods that the financial statements are prepared Significant estimates include

the estimated net realizable value of accounts receivable and the estimated liabilities for claims incurred but not

reported IBNR related to our medical malpractice coverage The process
of estimating the ultimate amount of

revenue to be collected and the estimate of IBNR involves judgment decisions which are subject to an inherent

degree of uncertainty Actual results could differ from those estimates
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IPC THE HOSPITALIST COMPANY INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Our cash and cash equivalents consisted of bank deposits money market accounts and short-term securities

with maturities of three months or less Effective January 2008 our cash equivalents are subject to the

provisions of SFAS No.157 Fair Value Measures SFAS 157 Under SFAS 157 we are required to measure the

fair value of our financial assets using three-tier fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure

fair value giving the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities Level inputs and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs Level inputs Based on this

hierarchy we determined the fair value of our cash equivalents using quoted market prices using Level inputs

under SFAS 157

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consisted of the minimum deposit amount that we were required to maintain with our lender

prior to amending our Credit Facility in October 2007 In accordance with our amended Credit Facility we are

no longer required to maintain minimum deposit with our lender

Accounts Receivable and Concentrations of Credit Risk

Accounts receivable primarily consists of amounts due from third-party payors including government

sponsored Medicare and Medicaid programs and insurance companies and amounts due from hospitals and

patients Accounts receivable are stated at the amount expected to be collected net of reserves for amounts

estimated to be uncollectible At December 31 2007 and 2008 we recorded an allowance for uncollectible

accounts of $2972000 and $3323000 respectively Except with respect to the Medicare and Medicaid

programs concentrations of credit risk which consist primarily of accounts receivable is limited due to the large

number of payors comprising our diverse
payor mix and patient base Receivables from Medicare and Medicaid

programs made up approximately 45% and 35% of the net accounts receivable at December 31 2007 and 2008
respectively

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are stated on the basis of cost or fair value on the date of practice acquisition

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred Depreciation is provided using the straight-line

method over the estimated useful lives of the assets Amortization of items under capital leases is provided using

the straight-line method over the lease period The depreciable life is generally three years for equipment and

software seven years for furniture and the lesser of the useful life or lease period for leasehold improvements

At December 31 furniture and equipment consisted of the following dollars in thousands

2007 2008

Furniture $1209 1432

Computer equipment and software 5502 6592
Office equipment 1352 1535

Leasehold improvements 169 331

8232 9890
Less Accumulated depreciation and amortization 6043 7438

2189 2452
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IPC THE HOSPITALIST COMPANY INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Depreciation and amortization expense for furniture and equipment including the amortization of assets

recorded under capital leases was $870000 $1042000 and $1395000 for the
years

ended December 31 2006

2007 and 2008 respectively

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We record acquired assets and liabilities at their respective fair values under the purchase method of

accounting Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of the net assets acquired Other intangible

assets primarily represent the fair value of hospital service contract agreements and non-compete agreements

acquired in connection with certain asset purchase agreements Under SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized Separable identified

intangible assets that have finite lives are amortized over their useful lives

We review and evaluate goodwill and other intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis at the entity

level since we operate in only one line of business The testing for impairment is completed using two step test

The first step compares the fair value of the Company with its carrying amount including goodwill If the

carrying amount of the entity exceeds its fair value second step is performed to determine the amount of any

impairment loss During 2006 2007 and 2008 no impairment indicators were present and no impairment was

recognized

Medical Malpractice Liability Insurance

We maintain medical malpractice insurance coverage that indemnifies us and our employed health care

professionals on claims-made basis with portion of self-insurance retention Claims-made coverage covers

only those claims reported during the policy period In December 2008 we renewed our annual professional

liability insurance policy for 2009 effective January 2009 Unlike our claims-made policy in effect in 2008

that contained self-insurance retention the 2009 claims-made policy provides first dollar coverage on new

claims reported in 2009 We expect to be able to continue to obtain coverage in future years however there can

be no assurance that we will obtain substantially similar coverage as is provided under the 2009 policy at

acceptable costs and on favorable terms upon expiration

We record reserves for self-insurance retention and an estimate of our liabilities on an undiscounted basis

for IBNR based upon actuarial loss projections using our historical loss experience At December 31 2007 and

2008 we accrued liabilities totaling $9851000 and $11759000 respectively for potential future uninsured

claims including provision for IBNR not covered under our claims-made insurance policy

Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31 2008 we had three stock-based employee compensation plans which are described more

fully in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements We account for these plans under the recognition and

measurement provisions of SFAS No 123R Share-Based Payment SFAS 123R which we adopted effective

January 2006 using the prospective-transition method Compensation cost recognized in 2007 and 2008

includes amounts for awards that are outstanding on the adoption date that are subsequently modified and

amounts for all awards granted subsequent to the adoption date based on the grant-date fair value estimated in

accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB Statement No 107 Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments requires disclosure of fair

value information about financial instruments for which it is practical to estimate that value Our consolidated

balance sheets include the following financial instruments cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable and

other current assets accounts payable and accrued liabilities short and long-term debt and other liabilities We
consider the carrying amounts of current assets and liabilities to approximate their fair value because of the

relatively short period of time between the origination of these instruments and their expected realization The

carrying amounts of other long-term obligations including borrowings under our Credit Facility approximated
their fair values based on borrowing rates and terms currently available to us for instruments with similar terms

and remaining maturities as of December 31 2007 and 2008

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measures SFAS 157 SFAS 157

addresses how companies should measure fair value when they are required to use fair value measure for

recognition and disclosure
purposes under generally accepted accounting principles SFAS 157 requires the fair

value of an asset or liability to be based on market based measure which will reflect the credit risk of the

company SFAS 157 also requires expanded disclosure requirements which will include the methods and

assumptions used to measure fair value and the effect of fair value measures on earnings SFAS 157 is effective

for fiscal
years beginning after November 15 2007 In February 2008 the FASB deferred the effective date of

SFAS 157 for certain nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities to fiscal years beginning after November 15
2008 and interim periods within those tiscal years We adopted SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities on

January 2008 The adoption of SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities did not have material impact on

our financial position results of operations or cash flows We adopted SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and

nonfinancial liabilities on January 12009 We are currently assessing the effect of SFAS 157 on nonfinancial

assets and nonfinancial liabilities on our financial statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and

Financial LiabilitiesIncluding an amendment of FASB Statement No 115 SFAS 159 SFAS 159 permits

entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value Unrealized gains

and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected will be recognized in earnings at each

subsequent reporting date SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2007 We
adtdSFAST59cni January 2008 We dld not elect to record at fair value any of our financial assets or

liabilities that were not previously recorded at fair value under other accounting literature

New Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 14 1R Business Combinations SFAS 14 1R which

replaces SFAS No 141 SFAS 14 1R introduces significant changes in the accounting for and reporting of

business acquisitions SFAS 14 1R changes how business acquisitions are accounted for and will impact

financial statements at the acquisition date and in subsequent periods Pursuant to SFAS 141R an acquiring

entity will be required to recognize all of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in transaction at the

acquisition-date fair value with limited exceptions and all transaction related costs will be expensed In addition
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

SFAS 14 1R will have an impact on the goodwill impairment test associated with acquisitions The provisions

of SFAS 14 1R are effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the

beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2008 The impact that the

adoption of SFAS 141R will have on our consolidated financial statements will depend on the nature terms and

size of our business combinations that occur after the effective date

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

During the yeas ended December 31 2008 we acquired the assets of ten hospitalist physician practices and

in connection with these acquisitions we recorded goodwill furniture and equipment and other identifiable

intangible assets consisting of physician and hospital agreements Amounts recorded as goodwill and identifiable

intangible assets are amortized for tax purposes over 15 years The results of operations of these acquisitions are

included in the consolidated financial statements from the respective dates of acquisition In addition to the initial

consideration the asset purchase agreements generally provide for additional future consideration to be paid

based upon the achievement of certain operating results of the acquired practices as of certain measurement

dates These additional payments are not contingent upon the future employment of the sellers The amounts of

such payments if any will be recorded as additional goodwill however such amounts cannot be determined until

their respective measurement dates

The following table summarizes the total amounts related to the acquisition of hospitalist practices for 2008

dollars in thousands

Intangible Furniture

Goodwill Assets Equipment Total

Initial consideration and related transaction costs $17693 $2847 $118 $20658

Earn-outs 11447 11447

Total acquired assets 29140 2847 118 32105

Less net change in payables for practice acquisitions 2184 2184

Net cash paid for acquisitions $26956 $2847 $118 $29921

At December 31 other intangible assets consist of the following dollars in thousands

2007 2008

Non-compete agreements 760 1059

Hospital contracts 690 3238

1450 4297

Less Accumulated amortization 642 1392

808 2905

Other intangible assets are being amortized over their estimated useful lives which range from three to six

years and have weighted average remaining useful life of 1.8 years at December 31 2008 Amortization

expense for identifiable intangible assets was $227000 $353000 and $751000 for the years ended

December 31 2006 2007 and 2008 respectively
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Future estimated aggregate amortization
expenses are as follows dollars in thousands

2009 837

2010 716

2011 448

2012 350

2013 350

2014 204

$2905

Debt and Capital Leases

Our amended and restated loan agreement Credit Facility as further amended through October 2007

provides revolving line of credit of $30000000 with sublimit of $5000000 for the issuance of letters of

credit and term loan in an original amount of $10000000 The Credit Facility has maturity date of

September 15 2011 The Credit Facility is used for working capital and to fund practice acquisitions and capital

expenditures

The revolving line is limited by formula based on certain multiple times the trailing twelve months of

earnings before interest depreciation taxes amortization and certain non-cash items Borrowings under the

Credit Facility bear interest at rate based on either LIBOR plus 1.5% to 2.0% or the lenders prime rate as

selected by us for each advance We pay an unused commitment fee equal to 0.25% per annum on the difference

between the revolving line capacity and the average balance outstanding during the year We make equal

monthly installment payments which increase annually against our term loan through the maturity date

Outstanding amounts advanced to us under the revolving line of credit are repayable on or before the maturity

date

The Credit Facility is secured by all of our current and future personal and intellectual property assets

except those held subject to purchase money loans and capital leases The facility includes various customary

financial covenants and restrictions as well as customary remedies for our lenders following an event of default

As of December 31 2008 we were in compliance with such financial covenants and restrictions

In January 2008 we used portion of the proceeds from our initial public offering to pay down the

outstanding balance of our revolving line of credit of $14140000 As of December 31 2008 our principal

balance under the term loan portion of the Credit Facility was $7800000 and we had letter of credit of

$100000 outstanding under the $30000000 revolving line of credit

Interest costs and unused commitment fees for the years ended December 31 are comprised of the following

dollars in thousands

2006 2007 2008

Interest costs $1266 $1643 $796

Unused commitment fees 47 49 $72

64



IPC THE HOSPITALIST COMPANY INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

At December 31 debt and capital leases consist of the following dollars in thousands

2007 2008

Revolving line of credit secured by personal property with interest at rates ranging from

6.34% to 7.43% repaid with IPO proceeds in January 2008 $11140

Term loan secured by personal property with interest at rates ranging from 2.9 1% to 6.43%

dueon September 15 2011 9750 7813

Loan agreements secured by personal property payable in monthly installments through

December 2010 with interest at rates ranging from 6.51% to 8.51% 1933 1026

Medical malpractice liability policy obligations with interest rates ranging from 6.65% to

7.30% secured by the policy payable in monthly installments through December 2008 3999

26822 8839

Less Current portion 7029 3471

Long-term debt long-term portion $19793 5368

Future maturities under long-term debt are as follows dollars in thousands

2009 3471

2010 3107

2011 2261

8839

Income Taxes

We use the liability method of accounting for income taxes as set forth in SFAS No 109 Accounting for

Income Taxes Under this method deferred taxes are determined based on the difference between the financial

statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the

differences are expected to reverse Deferred tax assets are recognized and measured based on the likelihood of

realization of the related tax benefit in the future

The income tax provision for the years ended December 31 is comprised of the following dollars in

thousands

2006 2007 2008

Current

Federal $202 $2292 $7398

State 178 936 1374

Total current 380 3228 8772

Deferred

Federal 41 1004 100
State 74 332

Total deferred 33 1336 108

Total provision $413 $4564 $8664

The 2006 2007 and 2008 current tax provisions include $196000 $455000 and $454000 respectively of

tax benefit from stock compensation recorded to additional paid-in capital
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Certain of our consolidated professional medical corporations are not consolidated for tax return purposes
Included in state taxes net of federal provision in the table below are the related effects of the separate return

filing requirements reconciliation of the provision for income taxes compared with U.S statutory tax rates for

the years ended December 31 is shown below

2006

34.00

9.32 23.00

37.33% 7.67%

4.47%
10.71 80.76

2.15 2.52

5.69%
_______

18.85 123.45

Prior to 2006 valuation allowance was placed on significant portion of the deferred tax assets due to

historical losses During 2006 the remaining valuation allowance for consolidated entities that file consolidated

tax returns was reversed based on continued earnings and expected future income from operations The benefit

recognized from the reversal of the valuation allowance resulted in reduction of income tax expense Certain of

our consolidated professional medical corporations are not consolidated for tax return purposes and the deferred

tax assets of many of these professional corporations continued to be subject to valuation allowance as of

December 31 2006 During 2007 the valuation allowance on consolidated professional corporations that file

separate tax returns was partially reversed based on the historical and current year earnings and expected future

earnings This reduction of valuation allowance combined with the adjustment to the federal rate applicable to

deferred tax assets reduced our 2007 effective tax rate However our 2007 effective tax rate was unfavorably

impacted by the nondeductible
expense from recording the change in fair value of preferred stock warrant

liabilities The state tax impact of this unfavorable item in 2007 was reported in the state rate

Statutory federal tax provision

Increase decrease in taxes resulting from

State taxes net of federal benefit

Change in valuation allowance

Change in federal deferred rate

Fair value of preferred stock warrants

Permanent differences and other

Recognition of FIN 48 tax benefits

Income tax provision

2007 2008

35.00 35.00

3.97

0.12%

0.18

0.03%

39.00
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for income tax purposes At December 31 the

significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following dollars in thousands

2007 2008

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss NOL and suspended loss carryforwards

Allowance for uncollectible accounts

Accrued vacation

IBNR accrual

Stock based compensations

State taxes

Other
______ ______

Total deferred tax assets

Less Valuation allowance

Deferred tax assets net

Deferred tax liabilities

Prepaid insurance

Depreciation and amortization

State taxes

Total deferred tax liabilities
_______ _______

Total net deferred tax asset

We evaluate the recoverability of our deferred tax assets based on operations The remaining valuation

allowance relates to consolidated professional corporations that file separate tax returns for which the realization

of the deferred tax asset is not more likely than not to be utilized

As of December 31 2008 we have federal NOL carryforwards of $2293000 which begin to expire in

2019 and state NOL carryforwards of $842000 which begin to expire in 2014 Federal NOLs of $1563000

incurred before 1999 are subject to an annual change of ownership limitation of approximately $195000 per

Internal Revenue Code Section 382 and applicable state statutes which may limit our ability to utilize portion

of these losses

We adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainly in income Taxesan

interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 FIN 48 on January 2007 At December 31 2008 we had $325000

of gross unrecognized tax benefits UTB of which $259000 would reduce the effective tax rate if recognized

Following is tabular reconciliation of the gross UTB activity during 2008 dollars in thousands

Reconciliation of Gross Unrecognized Tax Benefits

Balance at January 2008 excluding interest and penalties of $49 $352

Increasestax positions taken in prior years

Decreasestax provisions taken in prior years

Current year tax positions

Settlements

Lapse of statute of limitations 27

Balance at December 31 2008 excluding interest and penalties of $76 $325

809

1278

335

4236

38

870

1429

444

5057

367

129

20 52

6716 8348

347 329

6369 8019

1916 2235
1543 2773

3462

2907

5008

$3011
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Our accounting policy is to include interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax

expense As of December 31 2008 we have accrued total of $76000 of interest and penalties related to

uncertain tax positions

The tax years 2004 to 2007 remain open to examination by the major taxing jurisdictions to which we are

subject The statute for tax years 19972002 is closed other than being subject to adjustment of net operating
losses by the Internal Revenue Service We are subject to taxation in the United States and various state

jurisdictions The internal Revenue Service completed its examination of the Companys 2005 and 2006 tax year
and no adjustments were proposed

We do not believe the amount of UTB as of December 31 2008 will significantly increase or decrease

within 12 months

Defined Contribution Plan

In 1998 we adopted 40 1k plan InPatient Consultants Management Inc Savings Plan the Plan The
Plan is defined contribution plan covering substantially all employees Employees are eligible to participate in

the Plan on the first day of the month following completion of one month of service During 2007 the Plan was
amended to change its name to IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc 40 1k Plan to increase the amount we
contribute to 50% of the first 7% of the participants contributions and effective July 2007 to reduce the

vesting period to one year In January 2008 we further amended the Plan to provide for automatic enrollment of

all new hires and existing employees not enrolled and to change the eligibility date to 60 days following an

employees date of hire Employees that are automatically enrolled have 60 days to opt out of the Plan and to

receive refund of
any contributions made in that period We fund contributions as accrued Expense recognized

in connection with our contributions amounted to approximately $1719000 $2422000 and $3597000 for the

years ended December 31 2006 2007 and 2008 respectively

Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31 2008 we had three stock-based employee compensation plans the 1997 Equity

Participation Plan 1997 Plan the 2002 Equity Participation Plan 2002 Plan and 2007 Equity Participation

Plan 2007 Plan The shares reserved for issuance pursuant to these three plans have been adjusted to reflect the

1-for-6.4 reverse stock split which was completed in January 2008 We reserved 1054688 common shares for

issuance pursuant to the 1997 Plan and 531250 common shares for issuance pursuant to the 2002 Plan Pursuant

to the 2007 Plan which was adopted in June 2007 234375 shares of our common stock were authorized for

initial issuance which amount was increased by 371123 upon the consummation of our initial public offering in

January 2008 and each calendar year thereafter until 2013 the number of shares authorized for issuance under

the 2007 Plan will increase in an amount equal to 2.5% of the total number of shares of our common stock

outstanding Thenumber sharesavuilable forissuance underthe007Planwt1lt be increased by any
shares granted pursuant to the 2002 or 1997 equity participation plans that are subsequently forfeited by the

participants As of December 31 2008 188675 shares of our common stock were available for issuance under

the 2007 Plan

The options under the three plans generally vest over four-year period from date of grant and unrestricted

options tenninate on the 10th anniversary of the agreement date We account for stock-based compensation in

accordance with SFAS 123R which was adopted on January 2006 using the prospective-transition method

All options granted during the years ended December 31 2006 and 2007 and all options granted in January
2008 prior to our IPO on January 25 2008 were issued with exercise prices equal to the fair value of shares at

the date of the grant as determined contemporaneously with the grants As result of our IPO we revised our
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estimate of the fair value of common stock for financial accounting purposes for options granted in November

2007 based upon the offering price after giving effect to discount for lack of marketability Our stock-based

compensation expense for the year ended December 31 2007 includes consideration of the revised fair value of

common stock for the options granted in November 2007 Subsequent to our IPO all options have been issued

with exercise prices equal to the closing price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on the date

of the grant

Stock-based compensation expense for the year ended December 31 2006 2007 and 2008 was $26000

$91000 and $881000 respectively and such expense is included in general and administrative expenses Stock

based compensation expense for the year ended December 31 2008 includes $77000 of stock compensation

expense related to the Nonqualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan described in Note As of December 31

2008 there was $2231000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based

compensation arrangements granted under the plans That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-

average period of 2.9 years

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-

pricing model based on the following weighted-average assumptions

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31
2006 2007 2008

Risk-free interest rate 5.0% 4.05 4.94% 2.33%

Expected volatility 35.0% 37.0% 37.0%

Expected option life in years 6.25 6.25 6.20

Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The risk-free interest rate is based on the implied yield currently available on U.S Treasury zero coupon

issues The expected volatility is primarily based on historical volatility levels of our public company peer group

The expected option life of each award granted was calculated using the simplified method in accordance with

Securities Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB No 107 as amended by SAB No 110

The following table summarizes activity in the 1997 Plan the 2002 Plan and the 2007 Plan during the year

ended December 31 2008 dollars in thousands except for per share data

Weighted-

Average

Remaining Weighted
Contractual Aggregate Average

Weighted-Average Term Intrinsic Fair

Shares Exercise Price years Value Value

Options outstanding at January 2008 446175 3.07 $1.81

Changes during year

Granted 352172 18.23 7.47

Exercised 68315 2.15 0.75

Forfeited 51600 7.16 4.77

Options outstanding at December 31 2008 678432 $10.71 8.30 $4689 $4.64

Options exercisable at December 31 2008 218684 4.82 7.08 $2678 $2.09
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The weighted-average fair value of options granted for the year ended December 31 2008 was $7.47 The

total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the
year

ended December 31 2008 was $1256000

See Note for information on warrants issued to purchase Preferred Stock

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In March 2008 our board of directors adopted the amended and restated IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

Nonqualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP which we implemented on July 2008 The plan

authorizes the issuance of up to an aggregate of 156250 shares of our common stock to eligible employees who

meet the service requirements At the end of each annual offering period under the plan an automatic purchase of

our common stock will be made on behalf of the plans participants Eligible employees may purchase common
stock through payroll deductions in amounts from $500 to $10000 per year Employees may reduce or suspend

deductions during the year or withdraw from the plan during the year and receive refund of their deductions

For year 2008 the offering period was for six months and the annual deductions reduced by 50% Stock

purchases were made at price equal to 85% of the fair market value i.e closing price of our common stock on

the NASDAQ Global Market of share of our common stock on the first or last day of the offering period

whichever is less Since the fair market value was less on the last day of the offering period the difference in the

per share price was refunded to the participants We account for the plan in accordance with SFAS 123R For

the year ended December 31 2008 share based expense relating to the ESPP was $77000 and is included in

general and administrative expenses

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

During 2007 we had four series of authorized and outstanding redeemable convertible preferred stock

Preferred Stock Series Series Series Series and Series and warrants to purchase shares of preferred

stock Upon our IPO in January 2008 all Preferred Stock Series shares converted to 9025195 shares of common
stock and warrants held by our preferred stockholders automatically converted into 609197 shares of our

common stock in cashless exercise using the treasury stock method Warrants held by certain lender also

converted at the completion of our initial public offering into 32143 shares of common stock in cashless

exchange using the treasury method All remaining warrants were exercised as of October 2008

Prior to October 29 2007 the Preferred Stock Series had redemption feature Pursuant to the FASB Staff

Position FSP No 150-5 Issuers Accounting Under Statement No 150 for Freestanding Warrants and Other

Similar Instruments on Shares That Are Redeemable we recorded the fair value of the warrants as liability and

remeasured at each reporting period with gains or losses recognized as gain loss on fair value of preferred stock

warrant liabilities The fair value of these warrants at December 31 2006 was $2588000 and at October 29
2007 was $11369000

On October 29 2007 we amended our certificate of incorporation to remove the redemption feature of our

preferred stock At that date all preferred shares and warrants were reclassified as equity In connection with our

reverse stock split on January 11 2008 we further amended our certificate of incorporation on such date which

resulted in an adjustment to the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of our convertible

preferred stock to 16.4 ratio
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For the years ended December 31 2006 and 2007 the fair value of the above warrants was determined

using the Black-Scholes pricing model based on the following weighted-average assumptions

2006 2007

Expected Term Series Byears 1.1 0.7

Expected Term Series Cyears 0.4 0.1

Expected Term Series Dyears 0.4 0.4

Risk-free interest rate 4% 4%

Expected volatility 37% 37%

Expected dividend yield

The following summarizes the activity in our redeemable preferred stock accounts dollars in thousands

except per share data

Series Series Series Series

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Total

Balance at January

2006 10318866 5825 17893968 12526 11139850 9380 18408551 15000 $42731

Accretion of redeemable

preferred stock 271 271

Balance at December 31

2006 10318866 5825 17893968 12526 11139850 9380 18408551 15271 43002

Accretion of redeemable

preferred stock 229 229

Reclassification of

redeemable preferred

stock to equity 10318866 5825 17893968 12526 11139850 9380 18408551 15042 43231

Balance at December 31

2007 ss
Earnings Per Share

We follow Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No 03-6 Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method

under FASB Statement 128 EITF 03-6 which established standards regarding the computation of earnings per

share EPS by companies that have issued securities other than common stock that contractually entitle the

holder to participate in dividends and earnings of the company EITF 03-6 requires earnings attributable to

common stocltholders for the period after deduction of preferred stock dividends to be allocated between the

common and preferred stockholders based on their respective rights to receive dividends Basic net income
per

share is then calculated by dividing income attributable to common stockholders including the reduction for any

undeclared preferred stock dividends assuming current income for the period had been distributed by the

weighted-average number of common shares outstanding net of shares subject to repurchase by us during the

period EITF 03-6 does not require the presentation of basic and diluted net income per share for securities other

than common stock therefore the following net income per share amounts only pertain to our common stock

We calculate diluted net income per share under the if-converted method unless the conversion of the preferred

stock is anti-dilutive to basic net income per share To the extent preferred stock is anti-dilutive we calculate

diluted net income per share under the two-class method

Our convertible preferred stockholders were entitled to receive when declared noncumulative cash

dividends at an annual rate of 8% prior to any declaration or payment of dividends on our common stock

Consequently under EITF 03-06 such preferred shares are considered to be participating shares and we first
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allocate our earnings to our preferred stockholders to satisfy the 8% preferred return to the extent we have

sufficient earnings to satisfy this preferred return In addition dividends with respect to any remaining earnings

must be distributed on pro-rata basis to both our common and preferred shares If our earnings are not sufficient

to satisfy this preferred return we allocate all our earnings to the preferred stockholders but not more than our

earnings Basic net income attributable to common stockholders is net of the 8% preferred return and when

earnings are sufficient to satisfy this preferred return an allocation of remaining earnings among our common
and preferred shares on pro-rata basis

The calculations of basic and diluted net income loss per share attributable to common stockholders for the

years ended December 31 2006 2007 and 2008 are as follows dollars in thousands except for per share data

2006 2007 2008

Basic

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 1096 12858

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 1210571 1706682 14544722

Basic net income loss per
share attributable to common

stockholders 0.64 0.88

Diluted

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 1096 12858

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 1210571 1706682 14544722

Weighted average number of dilutive common equivalents from

options to purchase common stock and preferred stock

warrants 601963 247245

Weighted average number of common shares and common share

equivalents 1812534 1706682 14791967

Diluted net income loss per share attributable to common

stockholders 0.64 0.87

Potentially dilutive securities of 9025193 shares in 2006 and 2007 of our convertible preferred stock are

not included in the calculation of diluted net income per share attributable to common stockholders because to do

so would be anti-dilutive Outstanding stock options with an exercise price above market are excluded from our

diluted computation as their effect would be anti-dilutive At December 31 2008 there were approximately

29718 outstanding stock options with an exercise price above the
average annual market price for 2008
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The following pro forma of basic and diluted net income loss per share attributable to common

stockholders assumes the conversion of preferred shares to common stock at ratio of 6.41 as well as cashless

exchange of warrants held by our preferred stockholders using the treasury stock method dollars in thousands

except per share data

2006 2007 2008

Basic

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders

historical 1096 12858

Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stockholders 271 229

Income allocable to preferred stockholders 1507 696

Net income loss attributable to common stockholderspro

forma 1778 867 13554

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

historical 1210571 1706682 14544722

Add number of preferred shares and warrants converted to

common shares 9283835 9511089 631763

Common shares outstandingpro forma 10494406 11217771 15176485

Basic net income loss per share attributable to common

stockholderspro forma 0.17 0.08 0.89

Diluted

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders

historical 1096 12858

Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred stockholders 271 229

Income allocable to preferred stoØkholders 1507 696

Net income loss attributable to common stockholderspro

forma 1778 867 13554

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

historical 1210571 1706682 14544722

Add number of preferred shares and warrants converted to

common shares 9283835 9511089 631763

Add weighted average number of dilutive common equivalent

shares 343321 207298

Common shares outstandingpro forma 10837727 11217771 15383783

Diluted net income loss per share attributable to common

stockholderspro forma 0.16 0.08 0.88
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10 Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

We lease certain buildings and equipment under operating leases Certain building leases contain renewal

options Future minimum rental payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining

noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31 2008 are as follows dollars in thousands

2009 1826

2010 1554

2011 812

2012 280

2013

Thereafter

Total $4521

Rent expense for the
years ended December 31 2006 2007 and 2008 was approximately $1668000

$1787000 and $1963000 respectively

Regulatory Matters

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to

interpretation We believe that we are in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and we are not

aware of any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing While no such

regulatory inquiries have been made compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future

government review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines penalties and

exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs

We operate in certain states regulated under corporate practice of medicine laws and we believe that we are

in compliance with all such laws

Legal

In the ordinary course of our business we become involved in pending and threatened legal actions and

proceedings most of which involve claims of medical malpractice related to medical services provided by our

affiliated physicians We may also become subject to other lawsuits which could involve significant claims andl

or significant defense costs

We believe based upon our review of pending actions and proceedings that the outcome of such legal

actions and proceedings will not have material adverse effect on our business financial condition results of

operations or cash flows The outcome of such actions and proceedings however cannot be predicted with

certainty and an unfavorable resolution of one or more of them could have material adverse effect on our

business financial condition results of operations or cash flows in future period

Liability Insurance

Although we currently maintain liability insurance policies on claims-made basis with self-insurance

retention which are intended to cover malpractice liability and certain other claims the coverage must be

renewed annually and may not continue to be available to us in future
years at acceptable costs and on favorable
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terms In addition to the known incidents occurring through December 31 2008 that have resulted in the

assertion of claims we cannot be certain that our insurance coverage will be adequate to cover liabilities arising

out of claims asserted against it in the future where the outcomes of such claims are unfavorable During 2006

we settled professional liability claim in excess of our insurance policy limit We recorded the excess loss at the

net present value of $1312000 as litigation loss and other claims in our consolidated statement of income We

paid $750000 of this settlement during 2006 and the remaining balance in 2007 For the years ended

December 31 2006 and 2007 we recorded related interest expense of $11000 and $37000 respectively We

believe that the ultimate resolution of all pending claims including liabilities in excess of our insurance

coverage will not have material adverse effect on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

however there can be no assurance that future claims will not have material adverse effect on our business

11 Quarterly Results of Operations unaudited

Following is summary of our quarterly results of operations for the
years

ended December 31 2007 and

2008 dollars in thousands except for per share data

Mar31 Jun30 Dec31 Mar31 Jun30 Sep30 Dec31
2007 2007 2007 2008 2008 2008 2008

44696 44890 52577 60559 59154 63164 68302

3718 3205 4052 5427 4803 5389 6863

93 129 69 164 144 186 110

417 425 451 385 194 144 145

Income loss before income

taxes 3442 2775 6190 3670 5206 4753 5.431 6828

Income tax provision2 1429 1212 1064 859 2186 1997 2281 2200

Net income loss 2013 1563 7254 2811 3020 2756 3150 4628

Per share data

Net income loss per share

attributable to conunon

stockholdershistorical

Price per share

Basic 0.10 0.06

Diluted 0.08 0.05

Weighted average shares

Basic 1414651 1770763
__________ __________ __________ ___________ __________ __________

Diluted 1839347 2096279
__________ __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Net income loss per share

attributable to common

stockholderspro forma

Price per share3
Basic 0.19$ 0.14

Diluted 0.19 0.14

Weighted average shares

Basic

Net revenue

Income from operations 1..
Investment income

Interest expense

Gain loss on fair value of

preferred stock warrant

liabilities

Sep 30
2007

47839

2797

106

398

48 134 8695

3.97 0.18 0.20 0.19 0.20 0.29

3.97 0.12 0.20 0.18 0.20 0.28

1845909 1878382 11434588 14873501 15784261 16059982

1845909 2746196 11831936 15087795 15987343 16239765

0.65 0.24 0.22 0.19 0.20 0.29

0.65 0.24 0.21 0.18 0.20 0.28

10650140 10998907 11207504 11512772 13975526 14873501 15784261 16059982

Diluted 10864540 11121472 11207504 11771389 14212207 15087795 15987343 16239765

In each of the fourth quarters of 2007 and 2008 we recorded reductions of $0.8 million and $1.0 million

respectively in our claims and professional liability reserves because our final 2007 and 2008
year

end
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actuarial loss projections were less than the interim actuarial loss projections for the year due to favorable

trends in the ratio of claims to our number of encounters and improvements in the estimates of the ultimate

costs per claim

During the third quarter of 2007 an income tax provision was recorded on the net pre-tax loss as the loss on

fair value of warrants was not deductible for tax purposes The income tax provision in the fourth quarter of

2008 reflects state enterprise zone tax credits for the twelve months ended December 31 2008

Earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented and therefore may not

sum to the total for the year
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain controls and procedures designed to ensure that we are able to collect the information we are

required to disclose in the reports we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and to process

summarize and disclose this information within the time periods specified in the rules of the Securities and

Exchange Commission Our management with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief

Financial Officer has conducted an evaluation of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15e and 15d-l5e under the Exchange Act Based on this evaluation our

Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and

procedures are effective as of the end of the period covered by this report to ensure that information required to

be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and

reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and forms

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting

as defined in Rule 13a-15f or 15d-15f promulgated under the Exchange Act Those rules define internal control

over financial reporting as process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America or GAAP and includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with GAAP and that receipts and expenditures of the company are

being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use

or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Projections of
any

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2008 In making this assessment our management used the criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO Based on their assessment and those criteria management believes that as of December 31 2008 our

internal control over financial reporting is effective

There was no change in the Companys internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

three months ended December 31 2008 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect

the Companys internal control over financial reporting

The effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting has been audited by Ernst

Young LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report appearing on the page

immediately following which expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors

IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

We have audited IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc.s the Companys internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria The

Companys management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for

its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

managements report on internal control over financial reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based

on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We
believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the COSO criteria

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheets of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc as of December 31 2007

and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and cash flows for each of

the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 and our report dated February 27 2009 expressed an

unqualified opinion thereon

Is ERNST YOUNG LLP

Los Angeles California

February 27 2009

78



ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information required by this item will be contained in our definitive Proxy Statement with respect to the

2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission the 2009

Proxy Statement and is hereby incorporated by reference

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this item will be contained in the 2009 Proxy Statement and is hereby incorporated

by reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information required by this item will be contained in the 2009 Proxy Statement and is hereby incorporated

by reference

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

Information required by this item will be contained in the 2009 Proxy Statement and is hereby incorporated

by reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by this item will be contained in the 2009 Proxy Statement and is hereby incorporated

by reference
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The financial statements filed as part of this report are listed on the index to financial statements on page 52

a2 Financial Statement Schedules

The following schedule is filed as part of this Report

IPC THE HOSPITALIST COMPANY INC

SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Years Ended December 31

2006 2007 2008

dollars in thousands

Allowance for uncollectible accounts were as follows

Balance at beginning of year 1257 1810 2972

Amount charged against operating revenue 5119 6649 8498

Accounts receivable write-offs net of recoveries 4566 5487 8147

Balance at end of year 1810 2972 3323

No other schedules are included because the required information is inapplicable not required or are

presented in the financial statements or the related notes thereto

a3 Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description of Document

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate

10.11 IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc 2007 Equity Participation Plan dated July 19 2007 and the

forms of agreements used thereunder

10.21 Form of Indemnification Agreement between IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc and each of its

directors and executive officers

10.3 Form of Management Agreement between subsidiary of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc and

each of its affiliated professional organizations

10.4 Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of August 31 2005 by and

between Comerica Bank and IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc f/ida InPatient Consultants

Management Inc

10.5 LIBOR Addendum to Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of

August 31 2005 by and between Comerica Bank and IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc f/k/a

InPatient Consultants Management Inc

81



Exhibit

Number Description of Document

10.6 First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of

March 30 2006 by and between Comerica Bank and IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc f/k/a

InPatient Consultants Management Inc

10.7 Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of

January 31 2007 by and between Comerica Bank and IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc f/k/a

InPatient Consultants Management Inc

10.8 Third Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of

October 22 2007 by and between Comerica Bank and IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc f/k/a

InPatient Consultants Management Inc

10.9 Master Security Agreement dated as of September 26 2007 by and between General Electric

Capital Corporation and IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

10.111- Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effective January 11 2008 between Adam

Singer M.D and IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to

the Registrants Form S-i File No 333-151722 filed on July 2008

10.1 21- Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effective January 11 2008 between Jeffrey

Taylor and IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the

Registrants Form S-i File No 333-15 1722 filed on July 2008

10.131- Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effective January 11 2008 between Devra

Shapiro and IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the

Registrants Form S-l File No 333-15 1722 filed on July 2008

10.141- Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effective January ii2008 between Richard

Russell and IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the

Registrants Form S-i File No 333-151722 filed on July 2008

10.151- IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc Nonqualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan amended and

restated effective as of March 19 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants

Form 10-Q File No 001-33930 filed on May 14 2008

lO.16t IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc Executive Change of Control Plan

10.171- 2002 Equity Participation Plan of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc f/Ida InPatient Consultants

Management Inc and the form of stock option agreement used thereunder

10.18t Written Consent of InPatient Consultants Management Inc dated January 31 2007 amending the

2002 Equity Participation Plan

10.19t 1997 Equity Participation Plan of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc f/k/a InPatient Consultants

Management Inc and the form of stock option agreement used thereunder

10.201- Amendment No to the 1997 Equity Participation Plan of InPatient Consultants Management Inc

dated April 29 1998

10.2 11- Amendment No to the 1997 Equity Participation Plan of InPatient Consultants Management Inc

dated April 28 1999

10.221- Amendment No to the 1997 Equity Participation Plan of InPatient Consultants Management Inc

dated October 10 2000

10.23 Form of Succession Agreement between an affiliated entity of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

and its founding doctor

10.24 Second Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement dated October 2002 by and

between IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc f/Ida InPatient Consultants Management Inc the

founding stockholders signatory thereto and the investors signatory thereto
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Exhibit

Number Description of Document

21.1 Subsidiaries of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 3a- 14a or Rule 5d- 14a of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 3a- 14a or Rule 5d- 14a of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant

to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant

to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Incorporated herein by reference to IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc.s Registration Statement on

Form 5-1 File No 333-145850

Management contracts or compensation plans contracts or arrangements
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on the 2nd

day of March 2009

IPC THE HOSPITALIST COMPANY INC

Registrant

By /5/ ADAM SINGER M.D

Adam Singer M.D
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 2009

Signature Title

Is SINGER M.D

Adam Singer M.D

Is JEFFREY TAYLOR

Jeffrey Taylor

Is DEVRA SHAPIRO

Devra Shapiro

Is FERNANDO SARRIA

Fernando Sarria

Chief Executive Officer Chairman and Director

Principal Executive Officer

President Chief Operating Officer and Director

Chief Financial Officer Principal Financial Officer

Vice President of Finance and Corporate Controller

Principal Accounting Officer

Is MARK BROOKS

Mark Brooks

Is THOMAS COOPER M.D

Thomas Cooper M.D

IS FRANCESCO FEDERICO M.D

Francesco Federico M.D

Is CHUCK TIMPE

Chuck Timpe

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Is WOODRIN GROSSMAN

Woodrin Grossman

Is PATRICK HAYS

Patrick Hays

Is THOMAS SMITH

Thomas Smith

Director
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

Name of Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Organization Doing Business As

IPC Hospitalists of Colorado Inc Colorado N/A

IPC The Hospitalist Management Company LLC Delaware N/A

InPatient Consultants of Alabama Inc Alabama N/A

InPatient Consultants of Delaware Inc Delaware IPC of Delaware

InPatient Consultants of Florida Inc Florida IPC of Florida and IPC of

Florida Inc

InPatient Consultants of Kentucky Inc Kentucky N/A

InPatient Consultants of Missouri Inc Missouri IPC of Missouri

InPatient Consultants of Mississippi Inc Mississippi N/A

InPatient Consultants of Utah Inc Utah IPC of Utah

Hospitalists Inc California Hospitalists of

California Inc

Hospitalists Management of New Hampshire Inc New Hampshire N/A

Hospitalists of Arizona Inc Arizona N/A

Hospitalists of Illinois Inc Illinois N/A

Hospitalists of Georgia Inc Georgia N/A

Hospitalists of Maryland Inc Maryland N/A

Hospitalists of Michigan Inc Michigan N/A

Hospitalists of North Carolina Inc North Carolina N/A

Hospitalists of Nevada Inc Missouri N/A

Hospitalists of Ohio Inc Ohio N/A

Hospitalists of Pennsylvania Inc Pennsylvania N/A

Hospitalists of South Carolina Inc South Carolina N/A

Hospitalists of Tennessee Inc Tennessee N/A

Hospitalists of Texas L.P California N/A

Hospitalist Services of Florida Inc Florida N/A

InPatient Consultants of Wyoming LLC Wyoming N/A



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement Form S-8 No 333-148950

pertaining to the 1997 Equity Participation Plan the 2002 Equity Participation Plan the IPC The Hospitalist

Company Inc 2007 Equity Participation Plan and the IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc Employee Stock

Purchase Plan of our reports dated February 27 2009 with respect to the consolidated financial statements and

schedule of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc included in this Annual Report Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2008

Is Ernst Young LLP

Los Angeles California

February 27 2009



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14A
OR RULE 15D-14A OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 AS ADOPTED

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

Adam Singer M.D certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this report is being prepared

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board

of directors or persons performing equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2009

Is ADAM SINGER M.D

Adam Singer M.D
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14A
OR RULE 15D-14A OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 AS ADOPTED

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

Devra Shapiro certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact
necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this
report is being prepared

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board

of directors or persons performing equivalent functions

AWsigniflcantdeficiencies and material weakne sinthe-design-or-operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2009

Is DEVRA SHAPIRO

Devra Shapiro

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc the Company on Form

10-K for the period ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date

hereof the Report the undersigned as Chief Executive Officer of the Company hereby certifies pursuant to

18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

Is ADAM SINGER M.D

Adam Singer M.D
Chief Executive Officer

March 2009



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of IPC The Hospitalist Company Inc the Company on Form
10-K for the period ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date

hereof the Report the undersigned as Chief Financial Officer of the Company hereby certifies pursuant to

18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

Is DEVRA SHAPIRO

Devra Shapiro

Chief Financial Officer

March 2009
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